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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of the companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars give in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Millennium Pacific Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2017 was a year of growth for us. During the year ended 31 December 2017
(the “Reporting Period”), the Group recorded approximately HK$113.0
million revenue from its sales of consumer electronic products, representing
an increase of approximately 118.4% compared to that of the year ended 31
December 2016 (the “Corresponding Period”). The increase in revenue was
mainly contributed by our trading platform of fitness bracelets, GPS watches
and other consumer electronic products/parts, generating revenue of
approximately HK$107.5 million. Going forward, the Group will continue to
expand its trading business with our extensive experience in the market of
consumer electronic products.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$33.7 million for the Reporting
Period (2016: approximately HK$44.1 million). The narrow in loss was mainly
represented by the decrease of administrative expenses which was mainly due
to decrease in allowance/loss on written off regarding the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and trade receivables
amounted to approximately HK$9.7 million.

The Group would like to share more details of the Group's performance,
financial position and other information in the year 2017 with shareholders in
the following section of management discussion and analysis.

PROSPECTS

Apart from strengthening our current principal business in the research and
development, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic products, such as
GPS personal navigation devices, mobile internet devices and digital video
recorders, the Company is also seeking new investment opportunities to
extend its business scope to areas such as financial technology, internet
ecology, internet sharing business and new energy electric vehicles. The
Board hopes that development into other business areas will build up the
breadth and depth of our operation and bring better returns to its
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest thanks to the
management and our staff for their significant contributions. | would like to
expend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders and investors for their
endless support. With the solid business base and the effort of all staff, the
Group will endeavor to open a new chapter in the future.

Tang Wai Ting, Samson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacture and sale of consumer electronic products, such as fitness
bracelets, GPS personal navigation devices, mobile internet devices and TV
set-top boxes. The Group provides one-stop services to our customers by
offering design, prototyping/sampling, manufacturing, assembling and
packaging of their products. The revenue of the Group for the Reporting
Period was approximately HK$113.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately 118.4% from approximately HK$51.7 million for the
Corresponding Period. The increase in revenue was mainly contributed by the
trading platform of fitness bracelets, GPS watches and other consumer
electronic products/parts, generating revenue of approximately HK$107.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$23.0
million).

The following table sets forth the breakdowns of the turnover of the Group for
each of the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017:

BE

REBFERERE  BERFEEHBETER - RS
FIR - GPSEABMEE  THEFEKERBREES - K
SEABITHET - RS SRS R BER
BEEMMAZFEME I RE - AEBERSHZ M
AHNMB0EEET  BREAFRBZA51.7 8B TE ML
1184% - WM EFERHRNBE_T—tF+=A
T+ HUEFERSFR CGPSFHREEMBEEETE
B/ TR FEEARFENI075BEBT(ZT—N
F: #23.0E BB °

TREJIAEEEE T -RER_E—FT-_A=+—
LRSS HPA

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2017 2016

—2—tF ZE—NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET TR

Sales of manufactured products SHE R E S 5,490 28,721
Sales on trading of electronic products, BFESD  BRMUNREME

accessories and raw materials H 5% 107,494 23,006

112,984 51,727
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The majority of the Group’s cost of sales was merchandises and raw material
costs. The Group’s cost of sales increased by 132.9% to approximately
HK$107.4 million (2016: approximately HK$46.1 million).

The gross profit margin decreased from approximately 10.8% for the
Corresponding Period to approximately 4.93% for the Reporting Period. The
gross profit dropped slightly from approximately HK$5.6 million for the
Corresponding Period to approximately HK$5.5 million for the Reporting
Period. The decrease in gross profit margin and gross profit was mainly due to
the gross profit margin on trading of electronic products is lower than that of
manufactured products.

Expenses

Staff costs for the Reporting Period was approximately HK$23.5 million (2016:
approximately HK$18.5 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$5.0 million as compared with the Corresponding Period, which was mainly
due to the compound effect of (1) decrease of salaries of approximately
HK$9.7 million resulting from decrease in head count during the Reporting
Period; and (2) recognition of share-based payment expenses amounted to
approximately HK$15.6 million during the Reporting Period.

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period was approximately HK$41.6
million (2016: approximately HK$51.4 million), representing a decrease of
approximately HK$9.8 million as compared with the Corresponding Period,
mainly due to the compound effect of (1) increase in staff costs of
approximately HK$5.0 million as mentioned above; (2) decrease in operating
lease charges on offices and factory premises for approximately HK$1.5
million; (3) decrease in foreign exchange loss amounted to approximately
HK$2.9 million and (4) decrease in allowance/loss on written off regarding the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and
trade receivables amounted to approximately HK$9.7 million.

Taxes
The income tax expense comprised Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”).

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% based on the assessable profits
for the year. For the year ended 31 December 2016, no provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax is required as the Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries did not
have assessable profit.

On 26 December 2014, Central Pacific Int Technology Limited (“CPIT”), a
Company’s PRC subsidiary, was granted status of High and New Technology
Enterprise and entitled to preferential EIT rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to
31 December 2017 provided that CPIT continues engaging in activities which
meet the criteria of being a High and New Technology Enterprise pursuant to
No. 28 of the EIT Law of the PRC (“EIT Law”) and No. 93 of the Regulation
on the Implementation of the EIT Law promulgated by the State Council of the
PRC. The tax rate applicable to the Group’s other PRC subsidiaries were 25%
(2016: 25%) during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

No PRC EIT is required for the Reporting Period as the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries did not generate any assessable profit.

Loss for the Year

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$33.7 million for the Reporting
Period (2016: approximately HK$44.1 million). The narrow in loss was mainly
represented by the decrease of administrative expenses which was mainly due
to decrease in allowance/loss on written off regarding the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and trade receivables
amounted to approximately HK$9.7 million.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Historically, the Group has funded its liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through operating cash flows, bank borrowings and funds from the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Group
requires cash primarily for working capital needs. On 17 August 2017, the
Company completed the placing of 270,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of
HK$0.09 per share under general mandate. The actual net proceeds from the
issue of new shares of the Company under the placing were approximately
HK$23.9 million. The Directors are of the opinion that with the new capital
from the placing of shares of the Company, the Group is in a healthy financial
position to support its liquidity and capital requirements. As at 31 December
2017, the Group had approximately HK$21.3 million in bank and cash
balances (31 December 2016: approximately HK$7.2 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the net assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$9.8 million (including non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$37,000).

Taking into account the Group’s future development needs, the Company and
a placing agent entered into a placing agreement on 17 August 2017 to allot
and issue a maximum of 270,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$0.09 per Share. The new
Shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the Directors by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 5 May 2017. The
270,000,000 new Shares of HK$0.0002 each, credited as fully paid, were
allotted and issued to not less than six placees on 14 September 2017 with
net proceeds of approximately HK$23.9 million for general working capital and
future business development of the Group. Out of the net proceeds of
HK$23.9 million, approximately HK$21.8 million is held as bank deposit and
will be used for general working capital. Details of the above placing are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 17 August 2017, 31 August
2017, 14 September 2017 and 18 September 2017.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2017, all of our bank overdrafts and finance lease
obligations have been repaid, therefore there is no gearing ratio as at 31
December 2017 as compared with approximately 0.15% as at 31 December
2016.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity. For the
avoidance of doubt, total debt includes bank overdrafts and finance lease
obligations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

OPERATION REVIEW

Outlook

Due to the intensive market competition and the soaring production costs in
the PRC where our Group’s production base operates, our management had
carefully considered the market factors such as market trends, capital
expenditures and development cycles when selecting the appropriate product
mix should our Group focus and devote its resources. On the other hand, our
Group had temporarily suspended its manufacturing activities during the
Reporting Period to reshuttle the production equipments, such reshuffling
involved re-engineering the equipment and squeezing storage and office areas
to maximise the production capacity of the Group whilst minimising the
outgoing expenses. The Group’s production base has resumed its
manufacturing activities gradually from September 2017.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had broaden its product mix to meet
the continuously-expanding demand for wearing electronic products, including
but not only fitness wristbands and clips but also other products such as GPS
watches for kids and the elderly. The introduction of the GPS watches had
contributed a substantial part of our revenue, we sold over 150,000 unites of
GPS watches in 2017, generating revenue of approximately HK$40.8 million.

Looking forward, the Group will remain committed to the development of our
trading business. Apart from enhancing the research and development
function and expanding its product functionality, the Group is actively
developing electronic products market, through various channels and
continues to seek new investment opportunities with growth potential. No
target has been confirmed and no decision of such investment has been made
by the Board. The Company will publish announcement on these matters (if
any) in due course.

Acquisition of Shares by Martford Limited and Mandatory
Unconditional Cash Offer

On 6 April 2017, Martford Limited entered into sale and purchase agreements
respectively with (1) CPIT Investments Limited, pursuant to which CPIT
Investments Limited agreed to sell and Martford Limited agreed to purchase
993,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 18.99% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company at the consideration of HK$66,531,000 in cash,
representing HK$0.067 per sale Share; and (2) Seize Minute Limited, pursuant
to which Seize Minute Limited agreed to sell and Martford Limited agreed to
purchase 1,205,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 23.05% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company at the consideration of
HK$80,735,000 in cash, representing HK$0.067 per sale Share. Completion
of the above sale and purchase agreements took place on 11 April 2017.

Further, on 7 April 2017, Martford Limited acquired 499,240,000 Shares,
representing 9.55% of the entire issued share capital of the Company at the
consideration of HK$33,499,080 in cash, representing HK$0.067 per Share,
through a broker through an off market trade on 7 April 2017. Completion of
the shares acquisition took place on 12 April 2017.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & EE $} &5 2017

B

RE

PR 7S S B A o AL AT A B P B T 5 e SR B AR EE R AR
B bk MEEEREREETINENERNEREAS
B-EREEETSBY EARXRERAHETSH
R B—HH AEERBERANGEELETD  5H%
ERE  BASERRBEBENBEERTFLNAEEM  UF
ERAAEEEENNEEMX - AREEEEMA T
—tEFENARESMELELD

WEHAN - AEBDEEERMAS DA TEREAN AT RS
BYEMETL  pEESERNKT  TEREEGRERK
EHGPSFHEESHMER - HHGPSFHEBB AT DU
& B=ZT—tF &8 150,000 14 GPS F ik » #x5 M
#a08EEET -

RERN  AEBENHBINFAREE HE - [RETE
DR EREEREEIN  AREIEEREBTRRBEME
BFEMTS  AREESKARRERENZHRERS -
ERE AR IMNEERIAELEFBBIRERE - K
RAGER S EE (A EHASE -

Martford Limited & 3& it IR R S ELH AT EE
B% 13

R -Z—+F M A X H  Martford Limited % 7l £ CPIT
Investments Limited &2 Seize Minute Limited 5] 37 & &= 135 -
¥ Itk - (1) CPIT Investments Limited @ & H & i Martford
Limited [7] % i & 993,000,000 i i 15 + HBE R AR AR ZEE
ITA A 4)18.99% IS E4566,531,0008 7T BIERK
S %5 0.067 B TT + M (2) Seize Minute Limited [E) & H & i
Martford Limited [/ & 8% & 1,205,000,000 B % 15+ 15 & 7 A
DA R EE BEITRRANE) 23.05% + 3 & K (8 480,735,000
T BIEREERN0.067EITL - WEBEERADKR -
—tFMA+—HEK

AN - R=ZZFE—+F A+ H - Martford Limited A = —+
FHAERABBELABING 5 R U 499,240,000 B2 iR
B HEREARFZBEETRASS BHeaREAR
33,499,080 7T + BB 17 0.067 7T » RO KEE R =
T—tFNA+—HZEK °



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

Immediately following the completion of the above sale and purchase
agreements and the shares acquisition, Martford Limited and/or the parties
acting in concert with it were interested in a total of 2,697,240,000 Shares,
representing approximately 51.59% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company.

In accordance with Rule 26.1 of The Code on Takeovers and Mergers and
Share Buy-Backs (the “Takeovers Code”) published by the Securities and
Futures Commission, Martford Limited made a mandatory unconditional cash
offer (the “Share Offer”) to acquire all the issued Shares (other than those
Shares already owned or agreed to be acquired by Martford Limited and/or
parties acting in concert with it) in accordance with the terms as set out in the
composite offer document and the response document (the “Composite
Document”) jointly despatched by the Company and Martford Limited on 14
June 2017 in accordance with the Takeovers Code.

As of the close of the Share Offer on 5 July 2017, Martford Limited received
valid acceptances in respect of the Share Offer for a total of 398,010,000
Shares, representing approximately 7.61% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company as at the said date.

Further information regarding the Share Offer was published in the
announcements of the Company dated 26 April 2017, 17 May 2017, 14 June
2017, 20 June 2017, 5 July 2017 and the Composite Document.

Litigations

The Company received a petition dated 11 July 2016 (the “Petition”) filed by
Zhi, Charles (“Mr. Zhi") as petitioner in the High Court of Hong Kong (the
“Court”) against (i) the Company; (i) Kor Sing Mung Michael (“Mr. Kor”), a
former director of the Company; (i) Tang Wai Ting, Samson (“Mr. Tang”), an
executive director and chairman of the Company; (iv) Chan Kai Hei (“Mrs.
Tang”), the spouse of Mr. Tang; (v) Yang Wu (“Mr. Yang”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company; (vi) Mak Jone, a shareholder of the Company; (vii)
Seize Minute Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company; (viii) CPIT
Investment Limited (“CPIT”), a substantial shareholder of the Company; (ix)
Leung Wai Hing Ella, a former executive director of the Company; and (x) Mak
Hing Keung, Thomas, a former executive director of the Company as the
respondents, in relation to, inter alia, the winding-up of the Company under
action number HCMP No. 2651/2016 (formerly HCCW221/2016). On 22 May
2017, Mr. Zhi filed a notice of discontinuance to discontinue his claim against
all the respondents in the Petition, including the Company. Details of the
above legal proceeding are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
14 July 2016, 21 September 2016, 23 September 2016 and 31 May 2017.
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On 27 July 2016, the Company received a writ of summons filed by Kim,
Sungho (“Mr. Kim”) as the plaintiff in the Court against (i) CPIT; (i) Mr. Tang; (iii)
Mrs. Tang; (iv) Mr. Kor; (v) Mr. Yang; and (vi) the Company as the defendants
under an action number HCA 1935/2016 (“First Proceeding”) regarding
certain dealings in the shares of the Company. On 12 August 2016, the
Company received a writ of summons filed by Lim Hang Young (“Mr. Lim”) as
the plaintiff in the Court against (i) World Link CPA Limited (the auditor of the
Company); (i) Mr. Tang; (i) Mr. Chan Kwon Chi Vicky (a director of CPIT); (iv)
CPIT; and (v) the Company as the defendants under an action number HCA
2041/2016 (“Second Proceeding”) regarding, inter alia, certain accounting
issues. On 18 January 2017, the Company obtained orders from the Court to
dismiss the First Proceeding and the Second Proceeding against the
Company with costs of the proceedings to be paid by Mr. Kim and Mr. Lim
respectively. The Company is therefore no longer a party in these actions.
Details of the above legal proceedings are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 27 July 2016, 12 August 2016 and 3 February 2017.

On 17 February 2017, the Company received an originating summons (the
“Originating Summons”) filed by Mr. Zhi, Mr. Kim, Mr. Lim, Mr. Kim
Kyungsoo and Mr. Joung Jong Hyun as the plaintiffs in the Court against (i)
the Company; (i) Mr. Kor; (i) Mr. Tang; (iv) Mrs. Tang; (v) Mr. Yang; and (vi)
CPIT as the defendants under an action number HCMP 326 of 2017. The
Originating Summons did not set out any ground nor reason for requesting
such a court order and it was unclear what exactly the plaintiffs were seeking
and the legal basis for doing so. On 16 May 2017, Mr. Zhi filed a notice of
discontinuance to discontinue his claim against all the defendants in the
Originating Summons, including the Company. Details of the above
proceeding are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 13 April 2017
and 22 May 2017.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 25 employees (2016: 66).
The Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$23.5 million (2016: approximately HK$18.5 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market practice
and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification and experience
of individual employee. The Group recognises the importance of a good
relationship with its employees. The remuneration payable to its employees
includes salaries and allowances. Other benefits and incentives include
trainings and share options.

In Hong Kong, the Group’s employees have participated in the mandatory
provident fund schemes prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). In the PRC, the
Group’s employees have participated in the basic pension insurance, basic
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational injury insurance,
maternity insurance prescribed by the Social Insurance Law of the PRC ({1
= AREMBELEREE)), and housing provident fund prescribed by the
Regulations on the Administration of Housing Fund (({£E ATE & &R E&H))).
All PRC-based employees have the right to participate in the social insurance
and housing provident fund schemes.
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Capital expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$64,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$2.0 million).

Capital commitments
The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company does not have significant exposure on foreign currency risk.

The functional currencies of the Group’s entities are principally denominated in
HK$ and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
respective Group entities such as United States dollars (‘US$”). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives agreement and did not commit to
any financial instruments to hedge against its foreign exchange exposure
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

The Group had no significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies during the year ended 31 December
2017.

Charges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no pledged deposits (2016: HK$NIl).
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a motor vehicle with carrying amount
of HK$40,000 acquired under finance leases and the carrying value of finance
leases payables amounted to approximately HK$41,000. During the Reporting
Period, the finance leases payables is fully settled.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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Directors’ Report

ESEHE

The directors (the “Directors”) of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

The analysis of geographical locations of the Group for the year is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year and analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators and prospects of the
Group’s business are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
on page 5 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 12 of
the annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 127.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” and
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$7,891,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 128 of the annual report.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2017.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Liang
Mr. Zheng Si Rong (Appointed on 17 July 2017)
Mr. Wang Li (Appointed on 17 July 2017)
Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (Vice-Chairman)
(Resigned on 29 September 2017)
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas (Resigned on 17 July 2017)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jin Sheng (Vice-Chairman) (Appointed on 17 July 2017)
Mr. Chong Yu Keung (Appointed on 17 July 2017)
Mr. Liang Yuijie (Appointed on 23 June 2017 &
resigned on 19 December 2017)
Mr. Au Hoi Fung (Appointed on 1 February 2017 & Resigned on 17 July 2017)

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony (Resigned on 17 July 2017)
Dr. Li Ying (Resigned on 1 February 2017)
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Huang Jian (Appointed on 17 July 2017)

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (Appointed on 17 July 2017)
Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang (Appointed on 17 July 2017)
Mr. Wong Tik Tung (Appointed on 17 July 2017)
Ms. Chan Sze Man (Resigned on 17 July 2017)

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Resigned on 17 July 2017)

Mr. Ng Ka Chung (Resigned on 17 July 2017)

Ms. Eugenia Yang (Resigned on 17 July 2017)

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson, aged 55, is one of the co-founders of the
Group, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board. He is responsible
for formulating the corporate strategies and overseeing the overall business of
the Group. Mr. Tang has over 15 years of experience in selling consumer
electronic devices and over 20 years of experience in the research and
development of consumer electronic devices.

Mr. Tang received a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical and Electronics
Engineering from the University of Bradford, United Kingdom, in July 1984. He
worked in the research and development department of two companies in
United Kingdom, namely, Racal Electronics Group Plc Ltd. from 1984 to 1988
and AFE Electronics Group Ltd. from 1988 to 1992. The businesses of these
companies were manufacture of products in relation to aviation, marine and
electric equipment and industrial control products respectively.

In 1997, Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang jointly incorporated a company in United
Kingdom, namely Central Pacific International Trading Limited (formerly known
as Pan Express Foods Limited) which was deregistered in 2006. In 2004, Mr.
Tang and Mrs. Tang together established Central Pacific Electronics
(Shenzhen) Limited (one of our subsidiaries) with the base situated in the PRC
in 2004 to focus on the development and sale of GPS personal navigation
devices.

Mr. Liu Liang, aged 36, is an executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Guizhou University of Commerce (formerly Commercial
College of Guizhou) in 2000, majoring in Finance and Securities Investment.
Mr. Liu has held various business management positions in fund management,
import and export trading companies since 2000. Mr. Liu has extensive
working experience in management and leadership. Mr. Liu is currently
Director of Shenzhen Honghe Tianyu Assets Company Limited.
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Mr. Zheng Si Rong, aged 55, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Zheng had worked as the general manager of Guangzhou Ming Pu Guang
Dian Technology Company Limited* (& /N 71 BF & % E £ B R 2 7) from
2011 to 2013 and was responsible for the daily business operation of the
company. From 2007 to 2010, Mr. Zheng had worked as the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Jian Long Da Guang Dian Technology Company
Limited* (/& 3 (% % ¢ BEHE B R A &) and was responsible for the sales
and marketing of the company. Mr. Zheng had been a director of Jiangxi
China Oil Gangran Energy Technology Company Limited* (T 78 &8 A 6ER
R AR & £2 7)) and China Oil Gangran Energy Group Limited* (i3 1A
BEIREEB A BR A A]), each is a subsidiary of China Oil Gangran Energy Group
Holdings Ltd. (4 8 7 1A 88 )R & Bl4% iR A IR 2 &), the shares of which are
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (stock code: 8132). From 2015 to 2017, Mr. Zheng had been a non-
executive Director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (stock code: 8059).

Mr. Wang Li, aged 30, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wang
holds a master’s degree issued by Rutgers, the State University of New
Jersey, majoring in quantitative finance. Mr. Wang is currently the director of
Leveraged and Acquisition Finance Department of Haitong International
Securities Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong
International Securities Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 665)). Mr. Wang has extensive experience in the
area of merger and acquisition, listed company corporate action and
derivatives trading, and has participated in a number of deals relating to such
areas.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jin Sheng, aged 48, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Wu had been the legal representative ((EELFR) of AYITABERIZEBRA
&) and the director of Guangdong Baosha Group Co. Ltd. (BERED EEF R
A A]). He was the overseas consultant of the Thai Young Chinese Chamber of
Commerce (B ZEABFFREE) in 2006 and the honorary chairman of £ f
[ B 3 B Bk FE F & in 2008.

Mr. Chong Yu Keung, aged 53, is a non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Chong holds a Bachelor’s degree in E-commerce with over 20 years of
financial experience in securities brokerage, investment, corporate finance,
wealth management and private banking. Mr. Chong is the holder of
Responsible Officer licences issued by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission to carry on type 1, 4 and 9 regulated activities under the SFO.
Mr. Chong had served various positions in leading financial companies and
banks including The Chase Manhattan Bank N.A., Prudential-Bache Securities
(HK) Ltd., UBS Warburg, Dryden Securities (HK) Ltd., Fortis Bank, Hong Kong,
Forties Wealth Management (HK) Ltd., FT Securities (HK) Ltd. and Standard
Chartered Bank Hong Kong. Mr. Chong had served as a director in a number
of non-listed financial institutions in the past 10 years. In 2016, Mr. Chong had
been an executive director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8059)).
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Jian, aged 44, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Huang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Audit from Sun Yat-sen
University (47 1L K28) in 1996. He received a Master’s degree in International
Accounting from the City University of Hong Kong in 2005. He is also a
Certified Public Accountant in China. He is a partner of 1t ok i & sHEi S 745
FfT. He has business consulting and accounting audit experience. Currently,
he is an independent director of /& 3 & 2 £ B i% 17 A R A & (stock code:
400012CH). From 2003 to 2006 he has worked in Z &R = 48R ORI &
R 72 ®] which was a subsidiary of China HKBridge Holdings Ltd (formerly
“Topsearch International (Holdings) Limited” (stock code: 2323HK) as
financial manager. From 2007 to 2015 he worked at a number of subsidiaries
of Auto ltalia Holdings Limited (formerly “Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited”)
(stock code: 0720HK), as assistant financial controller and director. Mr. Huang
has also been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Nomination Committee and the Compliance
Committee with effect from 17 July 2017.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang, aged 31, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountant. He holds a bachelor’s degree in business (banking and finance)
from the Queensland University of Technology. Mr. Chan has over seven years
of accounting experience. He worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
September 2010 to June 2015. Mr. Chan has also been appointed as a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Compliance Committee with effect from 17 July 2017.

Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang, aged 47, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Zheng graduated from Jinan University, is qualified as
building construction management engineer. He has strong leadership and
management experience in the construction, real estate investment, asset
management fields. From 2003 to 2006, he was appointed as the vice
president of MBI E AR A, being responsible for the company’s real
estate development and management, investment and financing business; In
2006, he set up EINKE ML EEEEMR AT and has acted as deputy
general manager of the company which is engaged in real estate development,
asset management and other aspects.
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Mr. Wong Tik Tung, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Wong, FCCA, CPA (Practising), ATIHK, has over thirty
years’ experience in the fields of accounting, auditing and financial
management. Being a practising accountant in Hong Kong, he is also a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(CPA). Over the past years, Mr. Wong had taken directorships in the capacity
of (i) an executive director of Auto ltalia Holdings Limited (the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 720)), (i) an independent non-
executive director of Chi Cheung Investment Company Limited (the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 112)) and (iii) a non-
executive director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8059)). Mr. Wong has also been
appointed as the chairman of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Compliance Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee with effect from 17 July 2017.

Senior Management

Mr. Lu Zhiming, aged 42, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Lu is a graduate from Ningbo Yucai Technical Institute with majoring in
electricity and electronics. Mr. Lu has diversified management experience in
the fields of petrochemical and electronic business in China. For the period
from January 2000 to March 2002, Mr. Lu was the vice general manager of
marketing of China JinLun Tyre Fabrics Factory. For the period from July 2002
to July 2004, he was an executive director of a Hong Kong listed company
Yanchang Petroleum International Limited (previously also known as Minglun
Group (Hong Kong) Limited) (stock code: 346). Mr. Lu was the vice general
manager of LED International (Hong Kong) Company Limited from November
2006 to December 2009 and Shen Zhen Shi Ai Ying Zhuo Er Technology
Company Limited from January 2010 to April 2011. From May 2011 to May
2017, Mr. Lu was the president of Guang Dong Jian Long Optoelectronic
Company Limited.
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ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE FORTHCOMING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Zheng Si Rong, Mr. Wang Li, Mr. Wu Jin Sheng, Mr. Chong Yu Keung, Mr.
Huang Jian, Mr. Chan Hin Hang, Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang and Mr. Wong Tik
Tung shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Each of Mr. Zheng Si Rong,
Mr. Wang Li, Mr. Wu Jin Sheng, Mr. Chong Yu Keung, Mr. Huang Jian, Mr.
Chan Hin Hang, Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang and Mr. Wong Tik Tung shall offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson shall retire from office as Director by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson, being
eligible, shall offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date and shall continue thereafter unless and until it is terminated by the
Company or Mr. Tang by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to
the other and he is subject to retirement from office and re-election in
accordance with the Articles. Mr. Liu Liang has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 21
December 2016 and can be terminated by not less than three months’ prior
notice in writing. Each of Mr. Zheng Si Rong and Mr. Wang Li has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 17 July 2017 and can be terminated by not less than three months’ prior
notice in writing.

Non-executive Directors

Each of Mr. Wu Jin Sheng and Mr. Chong Yu Keung has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 17 July 2017 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the next
following annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. The service agreements can be
terminated by either party by giving three months’ notice in writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 17
July 2017 and shall continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by
one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other party.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has entered into a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2017, the interest and short position of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long positions

Ordinary shares of the Company

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and nature of shares issued share
Name interest Class of shares (note 1) capital
ROBE (AADBESBHT
=18 SO RESRNE IR 7 58 5B (Btat1) [ A=
Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson  Interest of controlled corporation Ordinary Shares 35,900,000 (L) 0.65%
(“Mr. Tang”) (Note 2)
BEEk L ([8EE]D) RiEHEE kR Rl
(Ktex2))
Liu Liang Beneficial owner Share Option (Note 3) 54,000,000 (L) 0.98%
2l BEmEB A BN (M52 3)
Wu Jin Sheng Beneficial owner Share Option (Note 3) 54,000,000 (L) 0.98%
REHE EmEB A BN (M52 3)
Chong Yu Keung Beneficial owner Share Option (Note 3) 54,000,000 (L) 0.98%
CEREL: EmEB A BN (M52 3)
Notes: Bzt -
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the share 1. [LI B R A AR BRI TR ©

capital of the Company.
2. The 35,900,000 shares were held by CPIT Investments Limited which is 2.

beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. Tang and 1% by his spouse.

3. These represented the interests in underlying shares in respect of share options 3.
granted by the Company, details of which are disclosed in section headed

“SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of
listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

FERREEMALTREQTRG REER D
MERERRR

RZFB—tHF+_A=1+—08 TIAL(BEFEFHAR
EITBABRINRAR Thfﬁ&*ﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁqﬂféﬁﬁ/,\nﬂi\$
RERIEES M GPI5 336 AR B S M A5

KA

l]

HRE
DNEEBER

_H.

Percentage of

Number of  the Company’s
shares issued share
Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) capital
BRBHE (hAARD BT
=18 SO RERNE (Mfet 1) BAzEDE
Martford Limited (note 2) Beneficial owner 3,095,250,000 (L) 56.30%
Martford Limited (ffz#2) BEamlEAA
Huang Ke Beneficial owner 500,000,000 (L) 9.09%
s ERBEEA
Notes: st -
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the share 1. [L] ERRAEARBRAE ST A -

capital of the Company.
2. Martford Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Lianghai.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no other person had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 20
June 2014 is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions that eligible participants (as defined therein)
have made or may make to the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Scheme shall be valid and effective

for a period of 10 years commencing from the adoption date (i.e. 20 June
2014).
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Movements of the share options, which were granted under the Scheme,
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out below:

BE-Z—tF+-A=+—RAILER  BEHEEL R
BRESBWT :

Number of Share Options
BREHE
Exercised
Granted during during the  Outstanding at
Outstandingat  the Reporting Reporting 31 December Share options
Category of participant 1 January 2017 Period Period 2017 Date of grant duration Exercise Price
RZZ-tF
RZZE-t& +ZA=t-H
2REEH —-B-BEATE  BEHARE BEHRTE HARTE RHAH BRERR T8
Directors Nil 162,000,000 Nil 162,000,000 19 December 2017 19 December 2017 HK$0.1632
to
18 December 2027
5% i i “TtF 2t 0.1632757T
+ZA+hA TZR+HBE
i 3
+ZA+NR
Other eligible participants Nil 338,000,000 Nil 338,000,000 19 December 2017 19 December 2017 HK$0.1632
to
18 December 2027
HitaER2 8% i i “T+tF 2% 0.163277T
+ZA+hA TZR+HBE
i 3
+ZA+NR
Total Nil 500,000,000 Nil 500,000,000
st id id

Each of Mr. Liu Liang, Mr. Wu Jin Sheng and Mr. Chong Yu Keung, being
Directors of the Company, was granted 54,000,000 share options by the
Company on 19 December 2017. Further details of the grant of share options
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 December 2017.

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers respectively during the year are as follows:

EEEN
R ARTER BRI MEARD EHHERRITH
THRETSIRETA K -

FERFRHED
FR- TEFFRHEEREAKEZHE MRE AN
T

Sales Purchases

HE 24

The largest customer BAREF 53.0% N/A A&
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFBE 94.8% N/A A5
The largest supplier SAMERE N/A 7~ 28.8%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate A A EEAR N/A 7~ 92.1%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Up to the date of this report, the Group had no significant events after the
Reporting Period which needs to be disclosed.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) as at 31 December 2017 had any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages 26 to 46 of
this annual report.
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INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

The engagement of Ample Capital Limited (“ACL”) as the compliance adviser
of the Company in compliance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules for a
period commencing on 18 July 2014, being the date on which the shares of
the Company first listed on GEM, to 29 March 2017, being the date on which
the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
its financial results for the second full financial year commencing after the date
of listing, had been completed in full compliance of the relevant GEM Listing
Rules requirements. Prior to the end of the said engagement, neither ACL or
its directors, employees, or close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had any interest in relation to the Group.

AUDITORS

World Link CPA Limited were appointed by the Directors to fill the casual
vacancy after RSM Nelson Wheeler resigned as auditors of the Company on 7
January 2015. Save as disclosed above, there have been no other changes of
auditors since 7 January 2015. A resolution for reappointment of World Link
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Tang Wai Ting, Samson
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability and
corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the interests of
shareholders of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules as its own code effective
from 18 July 2014 (the “Listing Date”) upon the listing of the Company and
had complied with the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2017,
except for the following deviations. The Board has continued to monitor and
review the corporate governance principles and practices to ensure
compliance.

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr. Tang”) was both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company during the year 2017. In view
of Mr. Tang is one of the co- founders of the Group and has been operating
and managing the Group since 2004, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to have Mr. Tang taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. Therefore the Directors consider
that the deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such
circumstance.

On 17 January 2018, Mr. Lu Zhiming was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. At the same time, Mr. Tang ceased to be the Chief
Executive Officer and still held the post of the Chairman of the Board. After
separation of the two roles, there are clear divisions among their
responsibilities with a view to achieving a balance of power and authority. The
Chairman provides leadership to the Board in terms of formulating policies and
strategies, and discharges those duties set out in code provision A.2 of the
CG Code. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company has the overall
responsibility of implementing the decisions, policies and strategies approved
by the Board, and overseeing the Group’s business and operations.
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Code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code provides that management should
provide all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 17 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Although the management of the Company did not provide a regular
monthly update to the members of the Board, the management keeps
providing information and updates to the members of the Board as and when
appropriate.

Code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code provides that appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against directors should be arranged. Currently,
the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action against its
Directors. The Board believes that with the current risk management and
internal control systems and the close supervision of the management, the
Directors’ risk of being sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as
Directors is relatively low. Benefits to be derived from taking out insurance may
not outweigh the cost. Despite it, every Director is, subject to the provisions of
the applicable laws, indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company. In view of the above,
the Board considers that the Directors’ exposure to risk is manageable.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code provides that the chairman should at
least annually hold meetings with the non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the executive directors present.
The board meetings of the Company held during the year 2017 included the
participation of the executive Directors, yet the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) could freely provide their
independent opinion to the Board. The Company will endeavor to arrange the
meetings for the Chairman with the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) so as to comply with the requirement of
Code provision A.2.7.

Code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the nomination
committee shall be chaired by the chairman of the board or an independent
non-executive director and comprises a majority of independent non-executive
directors. Mr. Wu Jin Sheng, a non-executive Director, was appointed as the
chairman of the nomination committee on 17 July 2017 which resulted in a
non-compliance. Such deviation from CG Code provision A.5.1 will be rectified
as soon as practicable.
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Code provision A.7.1 of the CG Code requires four regular board meetings,
for which an agenda and accompanying board papers should be sent, in full,
to all directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date
of a board or board committee meeting (or other agreed period). Due to
practical reasons, the agenda and accompanying board paper have not been
sent, in full, in 3 days advanced to Directors for the regular board meetings.
The Board will use its best endeavours to send the agenda and accompanying
board paper, in full, to Directors for the regular board meetings at least 3 days
advanced to the extent practicable.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules effective from the Listing Date on 18 July 2014.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was not
aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises 10 directors, including 4 Executive Directors, 2
Non-executive Directors and 4 Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Liang

Mr. Zheng Si Rong

Mr. Wang Li

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jin Sheng (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Chong Yu Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Huang Jian

Mr. Chan Hin Hang

Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang

Mr. Wong Tik Tung

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors are set out in
Directors’ Report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience,
knowledge and execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out his
duties effectively and efficiently.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, 1 general meeting, 4 regular Board
meetings and other 11 Board meetings were held in addition to circulation of
written board resolutions. The composition of the Board and Board
committees during the year and up to the date of this report, and its members’
attendance record of meetings held in 2017 are shown below:

Name of member

BEER

Annual
General
Meeting

BERRAE

BE T—tF+-_A=+—HULFE KRTEHNEDNES
BRABR  CETIRABRRARE 4REREFEEZNNM
REMEESEE - FANBEARSAY EESREE
ZEGHERREKER — BB ITE RN HF L
SR -

Attendance record of meetings held in 2017

Board
Exg

“E-LERETERNNELSE

Nomination
Committee

REZEE

Compliance
Committee
EREES

Audit Remuneration
Committee Committee

EREEE  FMEES

Number of total meetings

EAY

—_

11
11

Number of Meetings attended/Total
EHEEHEZAB/BY

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson

HEgtE

Mr. Liu Liang

Ellaps

Mr. Zheng Si Rong (Appointed on 17 July 2017)
BEREER_S—+FLA+LREZMA)
Mr. Wang Li (Appointed on 17 July 2017)
IREERZ—LFEL AT REZME)

Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (Resigned on 29 September 2017)

Kor Sing Mung, Michael %4
(RZZ—tFNAZTNBEE)

Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas (Resigned on 17 July 2017)

EEA %A (R-F—LF L ATLABE)

Non-executive Directors

FHTES

Mr. Wu Jin Sheng (Appointed on 17 July 2017)

REAFRERZF—LFLATHARZMA)

Mr. Chong Yu Keung (Appointed on 17 July 2017)

EERsE(RZS—tFLATLREZRMA)

Mr. Liang Yujie (Appointed on 23 June 2017 &
resigned on 19 December 2017)

RFEAEE(RZZS—tE A TZREZAEY
RZZB—+E+ZATNAREE)

Mr. Au Hoi Fung (Appointed on 1 February 2017 &
Resigned on 17 July 2017)

BHEEE(R-E—+tF-A—RERTY
RZZ—tF+AT+RFFE)

Dr. Li Ying (Resigned on 1 February 2017)

ZERT(R-Z—+F-A—HEMA)

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony (Resigned on 17 July 2017)

HFFEER_T—FLA+LBET)
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Attendance record of meetings held in 2017

E-LERETERNHELE

Annual

General Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance
Name of member Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
HERH BERRAS Exg ERZEE FMzES REZEE ARZEE
Independent non-executive Directors
BYkHTES
Mr. Huang Jian (Appointed on 17 July 2017) N/A N R 717 2/2 N/A TN 2/2 2/2
HREE (R Z—tELATLARZA)
Mr. Chan Hin Hang (Appointed on 17 July 2017) N/A NS 77 212 2/2 N/A i 2/2
BOTEE (RS-t F LA TLARZR)
Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang (Appointed on 17 July 2017) N/A TE R 77 N/A i N/A i F N/A i F N/A TE R
gmEst (RZF—tFtATHARZMA)
Mr. Wong Tik Tung (Appointed on 17 July 2017) N/A N R 717 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2
TREEE (Rt FLATLBEZHE)
Ms. Chan Sze Man (Resigned on 17 July 2017) 11 3/4 1/2 1/2 1/2 N/A N
BEgat (R=T—tFtATLAER)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Resigned on 17 July 2017) 11 3/4 1/2 12 1/2 12
FRELER-T—tFLAT AR
Mr. Ng Ka Chung (Resigned on 17 July 2017) 11 0/4 0/2 0/2 0/2 0/2
ARBEE (RZE—+FLATHHEHT)
Ms. Eugenia Yang (Resigned on 17 July 2017) 11 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2

*’%ﬁﬂ%ﬁi(ﬁ(‘\:i’?—tﬁtﬂ JFJEE%H{)

CG Code provision A.6.7 requires that independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors shall attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Four independent non-
executive Directors attended annual general meeting. The other Directors were
obliged to be away for their business matters and for negotiating with potential
business partners.

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management
company’s business and is collectively responsible for the Company’s affair
under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should make
decision objectively in the interests of the Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) Setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the Group’s
strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(ii) Diversification and extension of activities into new business area;
(i) Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  Dividend policy;

(v) Material acquisitions and disposal;

(vi) Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;

(Vi) Monitoring the performance of the Management; and

(vii

Determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the Board.

30

TEEATANEXEALTIERTE  BUFRTERELHM
FRTEEREFERRAES - YHARRRNE LA FED
TH - MDAEMEMITEECHRRRBFAE - HitES
AN E F5H R RIE MBE X GRHER MR LR R

® o
=

EEgNRE
BEERARAHIRBSTRARRZEY  WRBEEERE
RREBHAATFEHRAFBEEL - 2BEFEEBIE
A A AR R R FIZERE -

EEENERRAREMUATEERRZEIORE

0) REAEEDER TR GIEAR B KEERNT

(i) ST BERMIRREBEHEFES
(i)  HOERE  PHRFEEE

(v  BREEE:

v  EREERHE:

V)RR R EEIE AR E PRSI G
(vi) EEEEBENRE R

Vi) HEERBHEEFSEKEZ T -

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017



Corporate Governance Report

TERERHRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 20 June 2014. The
policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board that should have
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with policies. The
composition and diversity policies of the Board is reviewed annually and
regularly. The Board should ensure that its changes in composition will not
result in any undue interruption. The Board members should possess
appropriate professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing
their duties and functions. The Board would diversify its members according
to the Company’s situations and need. While participating in nomination and
recommendation of director candidates during the year, each member of the
Board may consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management. The Board is to review the policy
concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report, including any
quantitative targets and standards and its progress with policy
implementation.

In 2017, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board and considered the
Board composition and diversity is appropriate.

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to
entering into any significant transactions by the Management.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) Implementing the Group’s policy and strategies set by the Board;
(ii) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

(iii) Closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance with
plans and budgets;

(iv) Putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and

(V) Managing the Group’s day-to-day business.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed 4 Independent Non-executive Directors; and at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has made an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors were
independent during the year ended 31 December 2017 since their respective
date of appointment.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors by the Company.

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson, the Chairman and an executive Director, is the
spouse of Ms. Chan Kai Hei, a director of the Company’s subsidiary Central
Pacific International Group Limited. Save as otherwise disclosed herein, there
is no family or other material relationship among members of the Board.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors, should keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses
and activities of the Group. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and
updates all Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors provided their
training record to the Company in respect of their participation in training
activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties and
responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of which are as
follows:

B R

HERGEM EMRBIES.05(N KRR K RARIEZE4EE
UEMITEE  EPEL-ZABREERERK G LA
R EEIBEEME - S LIFRTERESRIECGEM EH
RANFES 0GR EB L M B HFERERE  MARRRS
BE-ZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE 28BIFNTE
FEHZEZTRBRGBEY -

FIAESERNRAIESMRH R AR A2 IR
TEEZHM0 -

IRRATESHEELERANATMNBARPERKER
BERARNEEREBRLLIZERE  -BARESEREN &
EFERE 2 AMERGIEMERRRE

FREXER

2RER(BEBUINTER) BREREREZTRNAE
EEBEEHNAREE - AEBE TS REMHRS LEME
Al AERREFEENME MG WHGEM ETARRAY
REMEREERENRNERASBESRESEHER
HERABRLIGERENRFEEERTRNEM

RHE-Z—tHF+-A=T—"HLFE E=pRE2H
BRREER ETAREEZ B RBEMNEIIEE (0
FEE) MAABRMSEINCE - FBEOT

Reading
materials relevant
to directors’

Attending the
seminar relevant
to the skills of the

duties and Director’s
responsibilities position
RESHERBE HERESRN
FRANMEME HeEFRNmEE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson BEELE v X
Mr. Liu Liang Bl v 4
Mr. Zheng Si Rong BB A
(Appointed on 17 July 2017) (R=ZZE—tFtAT+EHEEZE) v v
Mr. Wang Li (Appointed on 17 July 2017) TERE
(R=ZZE—tF+tAT+EHEEZE) v/ v
Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael Kor Sing Mung, Michael 5t 4
(Resigned on 29 September 2017) (R=Z—tFNA=FTHIBED) v/ X
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas RS
(Resigned on 17 July 2017) (R=ZT—tFtA+EH&HMD) v X
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Reading
materials relevant
to directors’

Attending the
seminar relevant
to the skills of the

duties and Director’s
responsibilities position
HEEBERBE HEREERN
FRNEEME HeEARNmEE
Non-executive Directors FETES
Mr. Wu Jin Sheng REELE
(Appointed on 17 July 2017) (R=ZT—tFtA+EBEZMT) v v
Mr. Chong Yu Keung AR -
(Appointed on 17 July 2017) (R=Z—tFtA+EHEZMT) v 4
Mr. Liang Yuijie RFENEE
(Appointed on 23 June 2017 & (RZZE—tFNAZ+=HEZE
resigned on 19 December 2017) WRZE—tF+ZATNAEE) v v
Mr. Au Hoi Fung @A
(Appointed on 1 February 2017 & (RZZE—tF-_A—HEZELRN
Resigned on 17 July 2017) ZE—EFEATHEHEE) v X
Dr. Li Ying FEELT
(Resigned on 1 February 2017) (RZZT—+E-_A—B&ME) v/ X
Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony HFEEE
(Resigned on 17 July 2017) (R=ZE—tF A TEHET) 4 X
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Huang Jian EiRSE
(Appointed on 17 July 2017) (R=Z—tF+A++HEZT) v v
Mr. Chan Hin Hang BRETITHR A
(Appointed on 17 July 2017) (R=ZZ—tFtR+tBEZT) v v
Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang BT S A
(Appointed on17 July 2017) (R=ZE—tFtAT+EHEEZME) v v
Mr. Wong Tik Tung TR A&
(Appointed on17 July 2017) (RZZT—tFtAT+EAEZME) v v
Ms. Chan Sze Man BREFEZ L
(Resigned on 17 July 2017) (R=ZE—tF A TEHET) v X
Mr. Lee Wai Hung TREELE
(Resigned on 17 July 2017) (R=Z—tFtA+EHEHT) v X
Mr. Ng Ka Chung HRIBEE
(Resigned on 17 July 2017) (R=ZE—tFtA++BEIT) v X
Ms. Eugenia Yang BrmEt
(Resigned on 17 July 2017) (R=ZZE—tFtAT+EHEE) v X
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr. Tang”) is both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company during the year 2017. In view of Mr. Tang is
one of the co- founders of the Group and has been operating and managing
the Group since 2004, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Tang taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. The role of the Chairman is primarily responsible for
managing the Board, whereas the role of the Chief Executive Officer is
primarily responsible for overseeing the various businesses of the Group. Their
respective roles and responsibilities are summarised as follows:

Responsibilities of the Chairman include: (i) leading the Board and ensuring
that the Board functions effectively and smoothly; (i) chairing the Board and
shareholder’s meetings; (iii) approving the agenda for each Board meeting,
taking into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by the other
Directors and the company secretary of the Company for inclusion in the
agenda; (iv) ensuring that all Directors receive all relevant information prior to
each meeting and are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; (v)
ensuring all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner; (vi) encouraging all Directors, including the
Independent Non-executive Directors, to actively participate in all Board and
Board committees meetings and promoting a culture of openness for the
Directors to share and voice their concerns on all matters during each
meeting; (vii) ensuring that good corporate governance practices and
procedures are established and followed; and (viii) taking appropriate steps to
provide effective communication with shareholders and to ensure that
shareholders’ view are communicated to the Board as a whole.

Responsibilities of the chief executive officer include: (i) implementing the
Group’s policy and strategies set by the Board; (i) strategic planning of
different business and functions; (iii) closely monitoring operational and
financial results in accordance with plans and budgets; (iv) assuming full
accountability to the Board for all aspects of the Group’s operations and
performance; (v) maintaining ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and the
other Directors; (vi) developing and leading an effective executive team; (vii)
putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in place ;
and (viii) representing the Company and managing the Group’s day-to-day
business.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are appointed for an initial term of one or three years and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”). At each annual general
meeting, not less than one-third of the Directors then in office shall retire and
every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

All existing Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or fee per annum respectively. The
remuneration of each Director is subject to the annual review of the Board with
reference to his contribution in terms of time, effort and his expertise.
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Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year are
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred
during the performance of their duties to the Company and are eligible for
share options under the share option scheme of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the
compliance committee, all with specific terms of reference clearly defining the
powers and responsibilities of the respective board committees. All board
committees are required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in
relation to their decisions, findings or recommendations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference that are in conformity of the requirements of the CG
Code which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the 3 Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Jian, Mr. Chan Hin Hang and Mr.
Wong Tik Tung and chaired by Mr. Huang Jian , with all members being
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company in full compliance with
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, 4 Audit Committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 and 30 of this annual
report.

The functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

(i) Appointment of the Company’s auditors
(@) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

(b) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

() to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;
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(d) to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor

to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor”
includes any entity that is under common control, ownership or
management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable
and informed third party knowing all relevant information would
reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where
action or improvement is needed; and

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the quarterly (if
any), interim and final audits and any matters the external
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of the Board and
other employees of the Group at the discretion of the Audit
Committee where necessary).

(i) Review of the Company’s financial information

(@)

36

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them. In reviewing these reports before submission
to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:
(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

) major judgmental areas;

©)) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

5) compliance with accounting standards;

6) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(7) any connected transactions and their impact on the
profitability of the Company;

8) items requiring disclosure; and

(9)  the cash flow position;
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(b) regarding point (a) above:

(iii)

(1) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the
report and accounts, it should give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors.

Overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures

(@)

()

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigations findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;
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(h) to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters and ensuring
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

(i) to report to the Board on the matters in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules;

() to report to the Board on the matters set out in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee;

(k) to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for employees
and those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the audit
committee about possible improprieties in any matter related to
the Company; and

(0] to review the disclosure in the Company’s interim and annual
reports regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial
actions.

Major accomplishments of the Audit Committee in 2017 comprised the
following:

(@) reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a quarterly,
half-yearly and annually basis, where applicable;

(b) reviewed the external auditor’s significant findings and
management’s response to the recommendation raised, if any;

() reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and the
adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting functions of
the Group;

(d) reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope for 2017 and the letter of representation to be given by the
Board; and

(e) considered and approved the 2017 external audit fees and
engagement letters.

The Group’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by management.
With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control system, during the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Company had appointed an external
independent consultant, to review the Group’s internal control systems and
recommend actions to improve our internal controls.
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Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s
internal control system was generally effective and in compliance with the
requirements of the CG Code C.2.1 for the year ended 31 December 2017 in
all material respects, provided that the control on dissemination of inside
information and use of financial resources could be further enhanced.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and recommended approval to
the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) with written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG
Code are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the 3 Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Tik Tung, Mr. Liu Liang and Mr. Chan Hin Hang , and
chaired by Mr. Wong Tik Tung.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, 4 Remuneration Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 and 30 of this
report.

The role and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration, of
which a significant portion of Executive Director’s remuneration should
link rewards to corporate and individual performance, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(ii) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(iii) either (a) to determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; or
(b) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

(ivy  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-
executive Directors;

(v) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment

and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and its subsidiaries;
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(v  to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

(vi)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are
consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

(viii)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration;

(ix)  to advise the Company to disclose details of any remuneration payable
to members of senior management by band in its annual reports; and

x) to advise the shareholders of the Company with respect to any service
contracts of Directors that require shareholders’ approval under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Major accomplishments of the Remuneration Committee in 2017 comprised
the following:

i) reviewed matters relating to the remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the CG
Code and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the 3 Directors, namely
Mr. Wu Jin Sheng, Mr. Huang Jian and Mr. Wong Tik Tung, and chaired by
Mr. Wu Jin Sheng.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, 4 Nomination Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 and 30 of this
annual report.

The role and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and

select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;
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(iii) to receive nominations from shareholders or Directors when such are
tendered and to make recommendations to the Board on the candidacy
of the nominees, having regard to the Board’s compositional
requirements and suitability of the nominees;

(iv)  to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
Independent Non-executive Director at the general meeting, it should
set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting why they
believe he should be elected and the reasons why they consider him to
be independent; and

(v) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.

Major accomplishments of the Nomination Committee in 2017 comprised the
following:

i) recommended to the Board the appointments of Mr. Zheng Si Rong
and Mr. Wang Li as executive Directors of the Company, Mr. Wu Jin
Sheng, and Mr. Chong Yu Keung as non-executive Directors of the
Company, Mr. Huang Jian, Mr. Chan Hin Hang, Mr. Zheng Wan Zhang
and Mr. Wong Tik Tung as independent non-executive Directors of the
Company.

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a compliance committee (“Compliance
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Compliance Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Compliance Committee is currently composed of 4 Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Tik Tung, Mr. Liu Liang, Mr. Huang Jian and Mr. Chan Hin Hang, and
chaired by Mr. Wong Tik Tung.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, 4 Compliance Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 29 and 30 of this
annual report.

The role and functions of the Compliance Committee include:

i) to establish, maintain and approve the compliance system of the
Group;

(ii) to support and provide instruction to ensure that each department to
establish, execute and maintain its compliance system;

(iii) to approve the compliance manual and ensure it is updated;
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(ivy  to organise education and training programmes on compliance,

(V)

(vii)

(vii

()

x)

including compliance seminars;

to monitor the status of the compliance system and discuss from time
to time with relevant management members on the compliance system
to ascertain what action, if any, is required for ongoing compliance;

to investigate compliance problems and take appropriate measures
when one arises (it may instruct the relevant department(s) to deal with
the problem depending on its nature);

to delegate the day-to-day implementation and monitoring of
compliance system to the compliance offer and company secretary;

to review and monitor the ongoing compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant laws and regulations;

to note any material deficiencies and take remedial actions if necessary
and at all times keep the Board abreast of any such actions and/or
developments; and

to review the disclosures in the Company’s interim and annual reports
regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions.

Major accomplishments of the Compliance Committee in 2017 comprised the
following:

review the disclosures in the Company’s 2016 annual report regarding
any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions, if any; and

review the disclosures in the Company’s 2017 interim report regarding
any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions, if any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board held 4 meetings for the purpose of reviewing the compliance of
corporate governance policies for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The duties of the Board include:

)

(i)

(i

()

42

to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)

(Vi)

(vil)

(vili)
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(v) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the CG Report.

Major accomplishments in 2017 comprised the following:

i

) evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and made appropriate amendments;

(ii) arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and

(iii) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the external
auditor, World Link CPA Limited, to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$550,000 and HK$263,000
respectively. The non-audit service represented service fees for tax compliance
and other review services.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 were audited by World
Link CPA Limited whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
World Link CPA Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the Group’s
financial statements to give a true and fair view. The responsibilities of auditors
in respect of the financial statements are set out in the report of the auditors
forming part of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control system
which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key risk exposures. The
Group’s system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage and
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfilment of the business
objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the
Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing reasonable
assurance in relation to protection of material assets and shareholders’
interests. During the year under review, an external independent consultant
has reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and has provided written reports to the Audit Committee.
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The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to identify,
assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line of defence,
business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risk
associated with each business or transaction. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provide technical
support, develops new system and oversees portfolio management. It ensures
risks are within acceptable range and that the first line of defence is effective.
As the third line of defense, an external independent consultant assists the
Audit Committee to review the first and second lines of defence.

The Group is committed to the identification, evaluation and management of
risks associated with its business activities through ongoing assessment of a
risk register, by considering the likelihood and impact of each identified risk.
The Group has implemented an effective control system which includes a
defined management structure with limits of authority, a sound management
system and periodic review of the Group’s performance by the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2017, covering the material financial, operational
and compliance controls, which are considered effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience, training and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions on an annual basis.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
event that may impact the price of the shares of the Company or their trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered inside
information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable
pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside
Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. The Executive Directors
have responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be
issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to
time.

The Company has put in place procedures on handling and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place any
person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the market to price
the listed securities of the Company with the latest available information. The
Company has appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify
and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of
the Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The current Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Ngan Wai Kam,
Sharon (“Ms Ngan”) who is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 17 July 2017 as external service
provider to assist the Board and the primary contact person of the company is
its executive director, Mr. Liu Liang.

A written record had been received by the Company from Ms. Ngan Wai Kam,
Sharon confirming that she took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2017. The Company is of the
view that Ms. Ngan has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho resigned as company secretary of the Company on 17
March 2017. Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson, the Chairman of the Board,
assumed the duties of the secretary to the Board until the appointment of Ms.
Ngan as the new secretary to the Board. All directors have access to the
advice and services of the company secretary, who is responsible for ensuring
that the board procedures are followed, advising the Board on all corporate
governance matters, and arranging induction programs including briefings on
the general and specific duties of directors under legal and regulatory
requirements for newly appointed directors. The company secretary facilitates
the induction and professional development of directors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

In order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles, and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

0] any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Article 64 of the Articles; and

(ii) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Apart from sending email to info@mpgroup.com.hk, shareholders may send
their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
headquarter and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
Unit 5, 4/F, Energy Plaza, No. 92 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 3007 6597, for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Articles, Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by
means of written requisition to convene an EGM following the procedures set
out above.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no significant change in the
Company’s memorandum and the Articles.
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FOREWORD

The Group primarily adopts the principles and basis of the ESG Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM Listing Rule”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, with an aim to establish a sound
environment, social and governance structure.

This report comprises the review of environment, social and governance
areas, which sets out the Company and its major subsidiaries’ policies and
practices in respect of three environmental aspects and eight social aspects in
accordance with ESG Reporting Guide for the year from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2017 (the “year” or “2017”). This report is designed to allow the
Company’s stakeholders, such as shareholders, investors, customers,
suppliers, employees, creditors, regulators and the general public to have
comprehensive understanding of the long-term sustainability information of the
Group. The Group seeks to balance the views and interests of these
stakeholders through constructive conversation with a view to setting the
course for long term prosperity. The Board of directors is responsible for
evaluating and determining the environmental, social and governance risks of
the Group, and ensuring that relevant risk management and internal control
systems are in place and operate effectively.

The table underneath showed aspects on the ESG Guide to be assessed and
those ESG issues were determined to be material to the Group.

ESG Aspects as set forth in ESG Guide
ESGIESIFiFIMERIE - HEREREHE

A=

AEEFZERMEEH A SMER AT GEMES LR
BIlY (TGEM 4R Bl 1) Bt 6% 20 P ESG 3R &5 5 51 #0 R Bl |
EREAHER  EEBBRIMNERE U RER/EME -

AIERBEHRE  HeREA TR - EREIIAR
ARHEFEMBRAAN 2 —tF-A—HBE-_T—LtF
ToA=ZTRLEFE(FAIR =T —1EF ) RIEESG
HEHESIE=ERETE R EL e T EHENRR R E R
R o RMESHERAARNFZEME - PINER - RE
FowP - HUER - RBE BERA EEWBRAREARE
ENRAHEZFRAG2ENTH - AREFZBEZRIE

BER  BOTFEZSHEBEMALTHERMAE - K
EELE’J?"F‘EW cEBEERAANEMEEAEENRE
HekeErRk  WHEABRRRELRANEZEZSREE
B RAIBRE 1’E °

MR ESGHE S| FHIZAIE L AR R
BERHAEEBEANRE - %i@&&u%lﬁ °

HEREAT

Material ESG issues for the Group
HEAEEBEANERE  HERERBE

(A)  Environmental

A IRE
A1l Emissions Electricity consumption
Al PR BIHEFE
A2  Use of Resources Use of energy and paper
A2 EBREA BEIR R AR A

A3 Environment and Natural Resources
A3 IRERBAER

Social

e

B1 Employment and Labour Practices
Bl EEKSIER

B2  Health and Safety

T3

BTER

Labour practices

Workplace health and safety

B2  f#EREiZ TSR REZR
B3 Development and Training Employee development and training
B3  #ERIE B TR KA

B4 Labour Standards

B4 HBIEA

B5  Supply Chain Management
Bs fEgEE®

B6  Product Responsibility

B6 EmAfE

B7  Anti-corruption

B7 RES

B8  Community Involvement
B8 fE2HE

HEREERE

EmAE

MHEEE
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Anti-child and forced labour
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Supply chain management

Product responsibility

Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and anti-money laundering
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Community programs, employee volunteering and donation
BTERIEBREES
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group. The
Group has proactively looked for and implemented new technology at
various stages of production in order to minimise its impact on the
environment. The Group’s products are designed to be safe and
environmental friendly for customer use, meaning recyclable and safe to
dispose materials are specified in its designs, and clean production
processes are adopted in its manufacturing process. Moreover,
unnecessary packaging that can cause harm to environment is not
introduced into its products.

The Group considers environmental protection an essential component
of sustainable and responsible business. The Group strive to negative
impacts on the environment and to seek environmentally friendly
methods of operation. Given the nature of the Group’s business,
electricity is the most significant resources consumed in the factory in
Shenzhen and office Hong Kong.

The Group have narrowed down to the following key areas where it
should exert the effort on:

° Usage of resources from the operations;
° Energy consumption; and
. Indoor environmental quality.

The Current Environmental Policies

The Group’s main task is to measure and report the efforts in reducing
carbon footprints, promote waste reduction at source, enhance its
waste disposal management and set targets on environmental
performance. To minimise the environmental impacts concerning the
activities, products and services, the Group will:

o Comply with applicable legal requirements and other
requirements which relate to the Group’s environmental aspects,
and to which the Group subscribes;

° Identify environmental impacts associated with the operations
and set the targets to reduce stress on the environment in
consideration of social expectations;

° Prevent pollution, reduce waste and minimise the consumption
of resources from all daily operations and actively promote
recycle, reuse and replace;

o Educate, train and motivate employees to develop a social
viewpoint that enables them to conduct business activities in an
environmentally responsible manner.

B
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A1.1 Emissions Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption

For Hong Kong office operations, the key environmental impacts
from the Group’s operations related to energy and paper
consumption. To achieve environment protection, the Group
encourages employees to shift to e-statement or scanning to
reduce the use of paper and greenhouse gas emissions; to
switch off all computers and office equipment and air-conditioner
at the end of each working day.

CPIT ensures its products are produced efficiently in an energy-
wise manner at its manufacturing factory in Shenzhen, PRC.
CPIT has also incorporated the 3Rs, namely Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle principles (the “3Rs Principles”) into the manufacturing
process which aim to improve the reuse rate of resources. In
addition, CPIT has maintained an environmental management
system in line with the requirement of ISO 14001:2004 in
practices to minimize air, noise, energy consumption, water
consumption, solid waste pollutions, and insisted that its
suppliers respect the same.

CPIT has integrated environmental objectives into the business
decisions in a cost-effective manner. CPIT has required all staff
to assume environmental responsibilities in normal operating
procedures and has enhanced the awareness of environmental
and resource efficiency issues amongst the customers, staff and
stakeholders. All important green and quality assurance policies
have been posted on the notice board and stated in the standard
operating procedures of the manufacturing plant.

(@)  Emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HERERRE

Al RERBUEEREE

EEREREENE  AEEZEELNT R
RIBFERGERLAEREH - REBRRE
RIEMEHN  AEEXBEEERERETA
BERRHAORDARER - WRABRERE
B R TIERARK ARG B &M

AERBREH -

FRIE N F HEAR EL B MR TE L A R BRI 9 B3
TRAETRE R B A A E - REMNE T I
DRAER - ERFERREREA] HSRRAI
(TBRs RAI) RAEEBE - BNENESE
REOBRAE - dtoh PEMNEFEERFSE
FEH IR BB 12 R L5 5 1S0 14001 : 2004 #
F o UBAKEERETZR - BS  0RER -
NCHFE - ElEEREEMSA - B ERHEMER I
1% -

M EF IR A 77 SRR B R
EREN—En - PEMNEFDERZEE
TEEFZEBETRARRAM  XIESE
P BIRMGEABEERERERBERE
TENEE - EEENGENEEBREBE
BHEEBAR L QM - WHNELER IR
BERFPIIA -

(&)  WEMEDEFEHMNE SR

0] For Electricity: ) BH
KPI
BERENER

% increase/

2017 2016 Unit (decrease)

LA CFRE)

—ZE—-+tF E-REF B [ERi)4

NOx 18,257 84,775 tonnes/million (78%)
=Rl MJ of gas
W, EBE
KEHRE

SOx 91 441 tonnes/million (79%)
wmalm MJ of gas
W EE
KEHRE
tonnes/million

Total 18,348 85,216 MJ of gas (78%)
W B8
#E KEHRE
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(b)  the Company has motor vehicles during the year, the (b)  AERERFENERTE (EHTEEL
emissions data from vehicle applied are set out below: BB EEIR 0T -
KPI
BERENER
% increase/
2017 2016 Unit (decrease)
EFH(FE)
—ZE—+tF —E—RE By [ERi)4
NOx 482 898 Grams (46%)
ARE =
SOx 56 104 Grams (77%)
Hmaty =
PM 31 57 Grams (46%)
LRSS =L =
Total 569 1,059 Grams (46%)
“st =
A1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emission A12 BRERBHHRE
KPI
BERENER
% increase/
2017 2016 Unit (decrease)
EH(TRE)
—=—+tF —E-RE By Aot
Scope 1
HEM
Direct Emission N/A N/A Kg -
IERE3 10 TiEA TERA T
Scope 2
gHE2
Indirect Emission 57,180 302,356 Kg (81%)
B HE IR T
Scope 3
HE3
Other indirect Emission N/A N/A Kg -
H b B HER TEA TEA Fr
Total 57,180 302,356 Kg (81%)
st F=
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During the year, there is 57,180 (2016: 302,356) kg of carbon
dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s operation.
The decrease is because the production volume is decreased
significantly during the year.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was 2,740 m? in 2017
(2016: 13,700 m?). The annual emission intensity was 20.9
KgCO2e/m? (2016: 22.0 KgCO2e/m?). The decrease is because
of the efficient policy control of the Group.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations:

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste of the Group during the year. In addition, no significant
fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations had been reported in the year.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group generates no hazardous waste in its operation. Non-
hazardous waste from use of electricity of the Group’s operation
but the management of the Group believed that is insignificant
waste.

Use of resources

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business
activities on the environment, and supporting environmental
protection programmes. In particular, a number of initiatives
designed to conserve resources were introduced to promote
employee awareness of the need to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources.

CPIT’s operation is purely Surface Mount Technology (the “SMT”)
plus flow soldering. As stated in “Emission” section, CPIT has
maintained procedures in practices in line with ISO14001:2004
and 3Rs Principles to minimise the energy, water and packaging
material consumption. The energy consumption is driven by
energy efficiency ratings of those SMT machines installed, which
CPIT can do nothing to minimise consumption but can switch
them off whenever there is no scheduled production.

For the Hong Kong office operation, the Group has been
encouraging employees to establish energy-saving habits in the
office, such as switching off lights and electronic appliances
before leaving the office, as well as setting indoor temperature at
25.5°C.
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A3 Environmental and Natural Resources

CPIT has established a series of policies, mechanisms and
measures on environmental protection and natural resources
conservation to enhance its efficiency in the usage of energy,
water and materials and also complies with relevant local
environmental regulations and international general practices,
with an aim to reduce the use of natural resources and protect
the environment.

CPIT has dedicated responsible persons to monitor its
ISO14001:2004 compliance and implementation of 3Rs
Principles from time to time. The policy statement on what needs
to be enforced to preserve the environment is printed at the back
of each and every staff’s carrying badge.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
environmental laws and regulations during the year.

B. SOCIAL
Being a responsible business and employer, the Group are committed
to consistently looking for ways to meet the corporate social
responsibilities. The Group focus on its staff, environment and
community as well as its business partners.

B1 Employment and Labour Practices

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human
capital and provides competitive remuneration and welfare
packages. Promotion opportunities and salary adjustments are
benchmarked against individual performance. Employees are
entitled to benefits such as annual leave, sick leave, maternity
leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and medical coverage in
accordance with local regulations.

The Group emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in
respect of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion
and other terms of employment. The Group is committed to
providing a work environment free from any form of discrimination
on the basis of ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual
orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the
employees with different genders, ages, skills, educational
backgrounds, industry experiences and other qualifications in
order to achieve the most suitable composition and balance.

The Group’s remuneration package is structured with reference
to the individual performance, working experience and prevailing
salary levels in the market. In additional to basic salaries and
mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong office staff, fringe
benefits include a basic five-day working week, flexible leave
arrangement, medical coverage scheme and annual dinner.
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CPIT has developed an employee handbook in accordance with
the Labour Law of the PRC and has distributed it to all
employees since they commence working for CPIT. The
remuneration policies are determined on the basis of
performance, qualification and experience of individual employee.
The remuneration generally includes salaries and allowances.

During the year, CPIT had subscribed to those basic pension
insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
occupational injury insurance, maternity insurance as prescribed
by the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, as well as housing fund
schemes as prescribed by the Regulations on the Administration
of Housing Fund.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are
made not less than the local government’s minimum
requirements. The normal working hours for general employees
are normally 8 hours a day and 40 hours a week. Integrated
computation of working hours is implemented with reference to
the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

Staff Composition

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 25
(2016: 66) staff, including operational office, sales and marketing,
production and back office division. All staff members are
allocated in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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(a)  Employee’ s Age and Gender Distribution (@ IESFE RIS
2017 2016
—E—+E —T—RF

Age Group Male Female Male Female
FEMR! B ZH Sl 7t
0-15 0% 0% 0% 0%
03%-158%
16-60 84% 16% 61% 39%
16 5% -60 7%
=61/>61 0% 0% 0% 0%
61 R A =
Total 84% 16% 61% 39%
HBEt

53

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & EE $} &5 2017



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIB

54

B2

CHER

BAWmE

(b)  Employee’ s Geographical and Gender Distribution

(b)  ESHERILSS M

2017 2016
—E—+F AN S
District Male Female Male Female
i@ B ZH Sl 7t
Hong Kong 64% 4% 26% 15%
B
Mainland China 20% 12% 35% 24%
R A
Total 84% 16% 61% 39%
HEt
The Group will continue to provide a well-structured and caring AEEBEFEREBREEAETSARENT
environment to employees to raise their sense of belonging and VEIRIZ AR A S 0 SR BB R e TR o
work efficiency in the Group.
The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the FA - AEBEW TANEBE T AERERZREBRE
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact BREAMERMELRRE BEREA T
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and BoREE - TERE - 2t REKRA
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, = REF A AREENERNTENE
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare on e BEAh - iﬁ\])‘}'ﬂﬂiﬁlLJﬁ*ﬁEﬁ/ﬁé&%
the Group during the year. In addition, no non-compliance with M AR E RS G D BIER o
relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant fines or
sanctions had been reported during the year.
Employee Health and Safety B2 EEREHRZZE

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and
provides a healthy and safe workplace. The Group seeks to
attract and retain talented employees through providing a safe
and healthy workplace for each and every employee in line with
established internal guidelines and systems.

For Hong Kong office staff, the Group provides its employee with
flexible rest leave arrangement, medical and hospital scheme.
The Group understands that a good working environment for its
employees with a safe and comfortable working condition is very
important. The Group has set a clear guideline of work
arrangement for typhoon and rainstorm warning.

Smoking is prohibited in factory areas of CPIT. First aid exercises
are regularly performed. Regular fire prevention talks and fire
fighting drills are organised at least annually to improve
employees’ capability to deal with potential fire hazards.

REBRMRBRERED  WRERRZ2
B TVEZRT - NEBIRBEAEESI RHEAE
R BIRH L 2RENTHERE  BIREE
LGB ESRES -

EEMERET HE  AEEREREEARR
o BERERS - AREBB - BERLT
ERFTIERE ﬁﬁ%lf’ﬁfﬁ%?%ﬁﬂ@@ﬁ
EZ - ARBECHBELBAEMBRESHNT
TR PR AR -

ARERREFENEFBREARE < AKE
ST ABEITRRYI - AR EIREMRITH
N« P EDSFRITREIRE - AR
7R BB SEE A SR AR ) ©
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Occupational Health and Safety Data
The information of work accidence are set out below:

BRI R X2 HIF

BRTHEBINNEREIIMT :

2017 2016

—E—+F —E-REF
Health and Safety Male Female Male Female
REHEZE B ZH SM 7t
Number of work-related fatalities 0% 0% 0% 0%
E TERRRMIL T 8 A2
Lost days due to work injury 0% 0% 0% 0%
ETEEATIERE
Total 0% 0% 0% 0%
#aEt
During the year, the Group has had no non-compliance cases AEBRFATERERBEABEEERLDH
regarding violation of relevant laws and regulations on ERER ©
occupational health and safety.
Development and Training B3 #ERIZI
The Group has committed to provide on-the-job education and REER NN BE BRI BIASE Rl - A
training to its employees in order to enhance their knowledge RARSHME LI -  AEBESEEfEEES
and skills. All employees are encouraged to enhance their skills PRE-ESRARSORERANG  UWEE
and knowledge at every opportunity in order to perform their Y E =R TR R 5 B BT A TIELA R FE ifih A
current job more efficiently and effectively and to be better A BE IR M B RS R o ARENF
prepared for career opportunities which may arise. During the NAREERHNTEHEIRERIEETRAA
year, regular training courses were provided to the employees B - RegEI R E 215 -
included but not limited to orientation training, technical training
and quality training.
Performance evaluations are initiated each year. Recognising the REBEGFETERTE - BT AT E IR
value in the skill and experience of our staff, the Group has REBNBESEE  *EERRMZBER 2
adopted a policy that any promotions will be considered internally FHEARBAL BEE - AEFGEREIING
first before hiring any outside staff. It is the Group’s policy to B o REEPGEGABEASRA - A AMS
select the most suitable candidate for appointment to a higher RIRATMIEREHSE -
rank based on merit, rather than on the seniority of the
candidates.
Labour Standard B4 BIFEE

The Group fully understand that the exploitation of child and
forced labour are universally prohibited, and therefore take the
responsibility against child and forced labour very seriously. The
Group strictly comply with all laws and regulations against child
labour and forced labour for the manufacturing plant in
Shenzhen, PRC.
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For entry registration, all employees must present valid
documents to the CPIT as follows: (i) identity card and vocational
qualification certificate; (i) social security card; (iii) medical or
health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other relevant
information and documents required by CPIT. The above
procedures can ensure no child labour will be employed in
manufacturing plant.

All employees of CPIT are entitled to have sick leave, injury leave
and maternity leave with medical proof in accordance with the
Labour Law of PRC and Law of the PRC on the Protection of
Labour Rights and Interests and other applicable regulations. In
addition, all employees work normally 8 hours daily and are not
encouraged to work overtime. But if overtime work is required,
the relevant employees and superior will agree mutually in written
form. The compensation for overtime work is in accordance with
the provisions of the Labour Law of PRC.

During the year, the Group has had no non-compliance cases
regarding violation of relevant child labour and forced labour
laws.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations
that govern its business. The Group always adheres to
international best practices and conducts fair and unbiased
procurement processes when dealing with suppliers.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and
implements the value of honesty, integrity and fairness in its
supply chain management. The Group’s procurement
procedures provide directions and guidelines on evaluation and
engagement when dealing with suppliers of goods and services
to ensure business is conducted with legally, financially and
technically-sound entities. In addition, approval procedures are in
place to ensure that supplier engagements are monitored and
approved by the appropriate level of management.

During the selection process of suppliers, CPIT takes into
account factors such as quality of services and products, past
performance and green elements, under the major principles of
ISO 9001:2008 or the ISO 14001:2004. In addition, 3Rs
Principles are in practice throughout supply chain to demonstrate
its commitment to contribute towards a cleaner environment as
good corporate citizen. CPIT has asked for all major suppliers on
its supply chain to work with CPIT as a team to use energy
efficient processing equipment, non-toxic chemicals in their
production, practice clean production in their plants and eliminate
unnecessary packaging in their deliveries to drive down hazard
and non-hazard waste as well as greenhouse gases.

B5
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Product Responsibility

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in
terms of our products and services. Strenuous efforts are made
to ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
relating to product health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters of the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
The Group requires its employees to comply with applicable
governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and regulations.

CPIT has signed environmental agreements initiated by its major
customers to confirm its determination to manufacture in
accordance with environmentally related regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Group do not have any recalled products
and do not receive any compliant from its customers in relation
to either its quality of service or products. The Group has had no
non-compliance cases regarding violations of relevant laws and
regulations on product responsibility and data privacy.

Anti-corruption

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly prohibited. The
Group’s anticorruption policies set out standards of conduct to
which all employees are required to adhere in order to promote
the integrity environment in the workplace.

To combat corruption and to govern conflicts of interest, unless
with the Group’s approval, Directors and employees are
prohibited from accepting any valuable items from co-workers,
customers, suppliers or other stakeholders. Unless with approval
the Board, senior management members are also prohibited
from engaging in any activities that involve a potential conflict of
interest with the Group or may do harm to the Group’s overall
interests. Breaches are subject to disciplinary actions, including
the termination of employment contracts where necessary.

Various policies have also been formulated to accord with the
Securities and Futures Commission’s Guideline on Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing, including the basic
procedures for customer identification and due diligence,
suspicious transactions report and recordkeeping. Ongoing staff
training has also been carried out to ensure each of the
employees is fully aware of these policies.

CPIT is fully aware of the Group’s anti-corruption policies and of
the priority to avoid corruption from taking root in its operation.
I[ts management understands layered audits and clear
accountability to monitor work related activities of the next level
and as well one more level below is the key to avoid possible
corruption.

In the year, there is no legal case conceming corruption brought
against the Group or employees.
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Community Involvement

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities in order
to contribute to local development from time to time.

As global responsible citizen, the Group strives to improve the
society image and social responsibility through community
investment. All employees of the Group are encouraged to
participate their own initiatives on helping and supporting the
local communities and neighbours.

CPIT is fully aware of the need to plough back to the community
as good corporate citizens. CPIT has arranged for its research
and development team to take in university interns during
summer months to train them up and give them hands-on
experience to pave their ways for their future career
development.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MILLENNIUM PACIFIC GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Millennium Pacific
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 127, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have

HRERSEE

RIBEES 2 EEHE - BREZFA/EBSELANGEAY
BHEBRETREZNER - HEFHETE S SEXERE
BB ENBESHENERRETRIE MESTE
Yt EEBEEHEBER - 50 BT BUARRe A @ %
REAREZEE  WHRREPRE -

determined recoverability of trade receivables to be the key audit matter to be

communicated in our report:

Key Audit Matter
BEREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BARERESHREERPNMER

Recoverability of trade receivables
FEY AR 7% 89 o] Y 5] 14

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical judgements
and key estimates in note 5 and its relevant disclosures in note 20
to the financial statements.

BRI AT ZEBE  WitoEEZHBRFE
et RMTEE 20 616 /65 #% F5 A -

The impairment of trade receivables is estimated by the
management through the application of judgment and use of
subjective assumptions which give rise to certain degree of
uncertainty. Due to the significance of trade receivables to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements (representing
approximately 56% of the Group’s total assets) and the
corresponding uncertainty inherent in such an estimate, we
considered this as a key audit matter.
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Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of
trade receivables included:

Assessing the controls over the approval, recording and
monitoring of trade receivables, and evaluating the assumptions
used by the management in determining the recoverability of
trade receivables;

Reviewed and challenged the information used by management
to determine the impairment provision of each customers by
considering debts collection performance against historical
trends and relationship with the Group over time; and

Specifically, we reviewed the actual history of slow paying
customers against relevant correspondences for debt collection
and where applicable, respective published financial position for
assessing the recoverability of trade receivables.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all of the information included in the Company’s annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee assist the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% BLAD ¥R

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

World Link CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number: PO6633

5/F., Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEEREMEZEIER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—=—+tF ZE—RE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt e FHT FAET
Revenue &= 8 112,984 51,727
Cost of sales SHE KA (107,419) (46,125)
Gross profit ER 5,565 5,602
Other income EH A 9 2,756 2,701
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries B A RGES 33(b) 701 937
Selling and distribution costs HE R HEKRAR (640) (1,957)
Administrative expenses TR X (41,634) (51,366)
Loss from operation EEEE (33,252) (44,083)
Finance costs M%ER 10 (397) (10)
Loss before tax BRBLATE B 11 (33,649) (44,093)
Income tax expense FriSfiF X 12 (38) (1)
Loss for the year FREE (33,687) (44,094)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREAMZE (BER) WA -
for the year, net of tax: MBRBIE -
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJREER P E R AIHE -
Exchange differences on translating foreign HRE G IN TGRS R [E 5 24
operations (2,198) 2,012
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEBEEAE (35,885) (42,082)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTATEEFEFAESE :
— Owners of the Company — RNARERA (33,665) (44,094)
— Non-controlling interests — RIS (22) -
(33,687) (44,094)
Total comprehensive loss for the year LTATEGERZEEE
attributable to: MR
— Owners of the Company — RARRIEAA (35,866) (42,082)
— Non-controlling interests — IR E S (19) -
(35,885) (42,082)
Loss per share (cents) FRER B
— Basic — B 15 (0.63) (0.84)
— Diluted — 15 (0.63) (0.84)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BAARRE

At 31 December 2017
RZF—EF+ZA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt et FHExT FHIT
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NEE 17 51 3,890
Intangible assets mAE 18 = -
51 3,890
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 260 3,044
Trade receivables JE UK BR 3R 20 31,232 4,620
Other receivables, prepayments HAb e zk18 « FE 18
and deposits Mz g 21 2,630 1,966
Current tax assets BNERTE IR & B - 11
Bank and cash balances RITRRA SR 22(a) 21,298 7,212
55,420 16,853
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERTBR X 23 29,536 1,687
Other payables, deposits received and HibEAHRIE - 2ET2
accrued expenses NMIETER 24 6,550 6,131
Amounts due to directors JETEE B 25 3,319 683
Finance lease payables R & & R R 26 = 41
Bank overdrafts BITEX 22(b) = 50
Current tax liabilities BEARIIB B & 58 209
39,463 8,801
Net current assets REBEEZFRE 15,957 8,052
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERE 16,008 11,942
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Amounts due to directors FEEEIE 25 6,207 5,811
NET ASSETS EEFE 9,801 6,131
Capital and reserves BRARFE
Share capital A% AR 28 1,100 1,046
Reserves G 30 8,664 5,085
9,764 6,131
Non-controlling interests IR E 37 -
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 9,801 6,131

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March

2018.

Liu Liang
2=
Director

z2F

Zheng Si Rong
BB
Director

EE
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Consolidgted Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KARREAER
Foreign
currency
Share Statutory Merger  translation Option Non-
Share premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Accumulated Total  controlling Total
capital  (note 30(c)f)  (note 30(c)fi))  (note 30(c)fii))  (note 30(c)fv))  (note 30(c)(v)) losses reserve interests equity
RiEE EERE AHRE MERERE BRERE
BE  (Wasoon) (WEsoem) (WEsoch) (Wisoom) (WEsoe)  RatEE A%k FERER aRs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TERL THL TEL TEL TEL FEL TEL TEL ThER TERL
At1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F-H 1,046 38,747 766 12,400 974 317 (6,037) 47,167 - 48213
Release upon lapse of share option ~ AR B - - - - - (317 317 - - -
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZEEE
loss for the year et - - - - 2012 - (44,094) (42,082) - (42,082)
Changes in equity for the year - - - - 2,012 817) 43,777 (42,082) - (42,082)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-R"E+-A=1+-H
1 January 2017 e = 1,046 38,747 766 12,400 2,986 - (49,814) 5,085 - 6,131
Issue of shares by placement ~ BE-RFEHREE
under general mandate £
(note 28(a)) (Wi 28) 54 23,880 - - - - - 23,880 - 23,934
Acquisition of a subsidiary KERBAR
note 33(2) (Hit330) - - - - - - - - 56 56
Recognition of share-based BRNURAAER
payments AR - - - - - 15,565 - 15,565 - 15,565
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRABER2EKE
loss for the year #i = - - - (2,201) - (33,665) (35,866) (19) (35,885)
Changes in equity for the year ~ FREZ#E 54 23,880 - - (2,201) 15,565 (33,665) 3,579 37 3,670
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+-B=1-H 1,100 62,627 766 12,400 785 15,565 (83,479) 8,664 3 9,801
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZE—REF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&Z8BEeHE
Loss before tax BRA AT B (33,649) (44,093)
Adjustments for: BATSIBELFE
Interest income FBHA (2 (13)
Depreciation e 1,259 1,760
Amortisation of intangible assets mREERE - 135
Finance costs IS E B 397 10
Allowance for inventories FEEE 616 15,8183
Allowance for trade receivables JE T AR SR 3,321 -
Unwinding of discount on non-current liabilities ERE A ERLIR D - (1,189)
Impairment on intangible assets A R E = 579
Impairment on property, plant and equipment Y%~ BB KR ERE 615 -
Written off of property, plant and equipment VI3 - BB KR s 2,098 -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries oSN E A R Es (701) (937)
Share-based payment expenses LARR 1 AR 3R X 15,565 -
Operating loss before working capital changes LEBASEYALEEIE (10,481) (27,935)
Decrease in inventories FERL 2,168 4,095
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEMER R (38 0n), R (32,522) 1,671
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, A FEUERIE ~ TR FIE R
prepayments and deposits &e (gm), S (222) 2,139
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables JEABRFRIE A0, (R ) 27,787 (9,532)
Increase in other payables, deposits received HAa B FHIE  ERET @
and accrued expenses K ERTE A M 774 936
Cash used in operations KEFARS (12,496) (28,626)
Finance lease charges paid EXmEHEEER (1) (10)
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded (BHH),/ BREEBFER (189) 261
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) BiRE(BHM) PEME
refunded/(paid) Fris® ([¥HmEBHR ) 11 (12)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEAR S R (12,675) (28,387)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ R&ZBREHE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAYE  BERRE (64) (2,010)
Purchases of intangible assets BABREE = (633)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEFE AR 33(b) - 3,098
Interest received BUF B 2 13
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities BEEE (FTA) R eF8 (62) 568
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat THET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®BEZIZERLSKE
Proceeds from issue of shares by placement BE—REEEBREE
under general mandate BATR D B PISFRE 23,934 -
Repayments of finance lease payables EBEmERERMNRE (41) (159)
Advanced from directors E=EAb N 2,636 2177
Net cash from financing activities METHNEREFE 26,529 2,018
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BERRESESEYIEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS S CRD) B8 13,792 (25,801)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEE REF) 2 & 344 (22)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HWNEEER
AT 1 JANUARY BEZEEY 7,162 32,985
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rt+t=—A=+—H®W
AT 31 DECEMBER HEeRAESZEY 21,298 7,162
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND RERBLEEYIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRR SR 22(a) 21,298 7,212
Bank overdrafts RITEX 22(b) = (50)
21,298 7,162
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempt
company with limited liability under the Company Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 10
September 2013. The address of its registered office is Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business is located at B3
YuCan Industrial Park, Lanzhu West Road, Export Processing Zone,
Pingshan New District, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 July 2014.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2017, Martford Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is the immediate and ultimate parent of the Company and Mr.
Wang Liang Hai is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“‘HKFRSs”), which in collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are discussed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 below provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

3.

70

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(@)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017. None of these impact on the accounting policies
of the Group. However, the Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative require disclosure of changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
effect of the amendments on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements has been the inclusion of additional disclosures in
note 33(c).

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of
changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The Group
has provided this information in note 33(c).

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax assets
and clarify some of the necessary considerations, including how
to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured of fair value. The amendments had no effect on the
Group’s financial position and performance as the Group has no
deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the scope
of the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 12 (Annual Improvements Cycle 2014-2016)

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 12, other than those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply to an
entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or
a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is
classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as
held for sale.

These amendments had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3. BRAFIIREETERBMBREERL (B

(continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)
effective
The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2017. These new and revised HKFRSs
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

ERMEERERHITRRETES
Bt 3 3% 5 2
AEBETEREFRADEMEDAN - —+
F— A ARBZHBEE LRI REE
RIEBMBIMELED - I EHEAEE R 2
A REER BBV BHREENREAT &
15 o

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

RT3 BEHs 2%

MM E HREXN

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BB HRELRNFEIRERMTEA

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts BN REEREASHEKREES
with Customers & RIA =

HKFRS 16 Leases BB BRELEBEI6HREE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed for
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information currently available
to the Group, and further impacts may be identified before the
standards are initially applied in the Group’s interim financial
report for the six months ended 30 June 2018. The Group may
also change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially applied in that
interim financial report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSP AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(b)

72

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to adopt
the new standard on the required effective date and will not
restate comparative information.

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at that date, the directors of the
Company have assessed the impact of HKFRS 9 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as follows:

(@  Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at amortised costs, fair
value through profit or loss and fair value through other
comprehensive income. Classification is driven by the
entity’s business model for managing the debt instruments
and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects
that its financial assets currently measured at amortised
cost will continue with their classification and measurements
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

3. HEMHITREBITEBMBHREER (K)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Impairment
The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is
required to recognise and measure expected credit losses
as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on the asset and the
facts and circumstances. This new impairment model may
result in an earlier recognition of credit losses on the
Group’s trade receivables and other financial assets.

The Group expects that the application of the expected
credit loss model will result in earlier recognition of credit
losses. Based on a preliminary assessment, if the Group
were to adopt the new impairment requirements at 31
December 2017, accumulated impairment loss at that
date would be slightly increased as compared with that
recognised under HKAS 39. The above assessments were
made based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets
as at 31 December 2017 on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at that date. As facts and
circumstances may change during the period leading up
to the initial date of application of HKFRS 9, which is
expected to be 1 January 2018 as the Group does not
intend to early apply the standard, the assessment of the
potential impact is subject to change.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue standards and
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. The standard permits either a full retrospective or
a modified retrospective approach for the adoption. The Group
intends to adopt the standard using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the
adoption will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.

The core principle of the standard is that an entity recognises
revenue to depict the transfer of goods and services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to become entitled in exchange for those
goods and services.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(b)

74

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with the core
principle by applying a 5-step model:

1. Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive disclosure
requirements relating to revenue.

The Group expects that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future
may result in more disclosures and will not have a material
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations.
The new standard introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS
17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to
classify leases as operating or finance leases.

The Group’s leases of offices, factory premises, and staff
quarters are currently classified as operating leases and the lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise and
measure a liability at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-use
asset for these leases. The interest expense on the lease liability
and depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in
profit or loss. The Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and
the timing of expense recognition will also be impacted as a
result.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, the Group’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases for its offices and factory premises amounted to a total of
approximately HK$10,122,000 as at 31 December 2017. The
Group will need to perform a more detailed assessment in order
to determine the new assets and liabilities arising from these
operating leases commitments after taking into account the
transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost

convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs

requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of

judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 5.

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

(@

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting year as that of the Company.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains and continue to be consolidated until the date when such
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary determined on the date
when control is lost; and (ii) the carrying amount of the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated amounts in other comprehensive income.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses and
profits and losses are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses. The
carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable
amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of a subsidiary are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and

expenses are translated at the exchange rates on

the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in the
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less accumulated
impairment losses from the date on which they are available for
use and after taking account their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
residual value and useful lives are as follows:
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Office equipment FENS'S 0-10% 5 years F
Plant and machinery S N i 2g 0-10% 10 years F

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(C)

(€

U]

(@)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
whether finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Cost of acquired application software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying software not
exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance
leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and
the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable. Finance
charges which represent the difference between the total leasing
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as owned
assets over the shorter of the lease term and their estimated
useful lives.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development activities is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

V)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs comprise all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised in the profit or loss in the period of write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories recognised as an increment in the amount of
inventories and recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss.

4.

TEERBEK(E)
h %&

0

TFERRAEA BB FENEREEIIR ° K
ANBIE— AR K (@A) I TR K
SHEEEDRB R LR X 2 E K
Ao AJRERFERLEREBBEF MG ERE
B ZETETABETAR R EH 35 & AT B E A fE
A - RHEFER - 2S5 FENREET
HERRA RN AR MERER AR - 78
WREAZRFENSRRFENMEBRE
WO HIR B EA RN ERTER - FENE
ORI B SRR ST S BAIEM - AR
OB A MMN B ER -

BRARKLERAEHMTA

BEARKEK A TEARGXXHIRTHITE - 5
BIRARNERCREERSREE -

BUMEERS REN A RENEMmE - K&
[ #5 & EE P A HE RO R EE ) [ e e [ S R B -
AAREEEE BT EB I NMREB EEME #
B R BB B % [0 3R {28 1 AR AR B 4 B AE O 2 16
o RIRIEERSREE RRILERSRE
E% - BEREEEDWREMEE 2 EY
ARNCHERHN RS R E 2 M2 HAER
FEREARER -

EAEBARARTENE ERER  THER
RRILERDBARE - RILERANSRAER
REEEZENREZHNEREREARER

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

4,

0

(k)

V)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans and other receivables

Loans and other receivables including trade and other receivables
and bank and cash balances are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are not held for trading are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except where receivables are
interest-free loans and without any fixed repayment term or the
effect of discounting would be insignificant. In such case, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition over the period to maturity. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss. An
allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group wil
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount
of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

()

(P)

(@

82

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenues from the sales of manufactured products and trading
of electronic accessories are recognised on the transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered and the
title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
method.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

()

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

(ii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

4. FEEFEEE)

(t)

(u)

BUS# R
TR B TE R T R 7 52 [ 755 & B P I 76 16
{1 B N S S A B B R ©

EREKELNRAS B RHBEIRALTEE
REEEFB M AR ARELBARA
17 R W 0 BT 708 B 0 5% S b B B W AR A 4R
NHERR °

BiIE
PRS8BT IR SR AR TR 2 A0 -

BIEAE R SRR IR F N ERBURMETH - 18
AR B A B E R N ER AR AR RERE
HARETARAMF EERT kA E e 278
B BERGFADNRBKAEINAIRE - NEH
RAHSHMRCHEREE LEHENR R
HEMORBEE -

EER ARV RE N EE R B ERNREE
HF A B ERVOE M AR DA 2 B E
MR - —REAMA MRV T Z g
RIELERIARE  MERBREREEE @ A8
VA5 SRAR A] BEBUAS A 2R b K T A0 BT B 1 2=
# o RBABIAEERSCRE A B IR 2R R R
BaEMAR - MEREEZHEEREELIRE
ENFERERDGN RN M 5 EE
B ERBERNERER (EBHE G - A
TemR b EERAE -

FRAR A B B8 1 B PTE A ) FE AR T B A 1 R B
RELERIARE - EANEEAEHZ TR
ZEMBEMZESEERRAIEISETR
A D A BRI

REBREMREEHECHBEENREE
WA AT BE A B 4 AR T M A [ 8 22 B =
Hi D AR - HERZAREE

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

4,

(u)

v)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(0} has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(0} The entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

(w)

86

Related parties (continued)
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to a parent of the Company.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
inventories and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to

the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

()

)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.
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5.

88

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(@ Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories of approximately
HK$616,000 (2016: HK$15,813,000) was made for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

(b)  Income taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC EIT.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

(c)  Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

As at 31 December 2017, accumulated impairment loss for bad
and doubtful debts amounted to approximately HK$3,321,000
(2016: Nil).
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group'’s financial performance.
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B E R EE
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Foreign currency risk (@) SRR
The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally AREBEENNEEETEZUETEARE
denominated in either HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”). The Group ([AR¥]EHE - XEBEBGE TI/INERER
has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its DHEREETEBRRS  BERBENAEE
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in hee SN B (T ([Ex]))FHE -
currencies other than its functional currency such as United AEBEBAERINER F - BEREEIEIN
States dollars (“US$”). The Group currently does not have a IR o A B S RY) EE HHMNEE S
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency REERERERERE PENIMNERR - T
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its REFIAREE 2 INERBREBRE DT ©
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise. Set
out below the sensitivity analysis the Group’s foreign currency
risk.
Functional (Decrease)/
currency increase in
strengthened/ consolidated
(weakened) by loss after tax
ThEEE % mEBBEE
FHE(BZfE) CRL2), /N
HK$’000
FERT
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—t+HE+=-A=1+—HLLEE 5%]/(5%) 357/(357) Note) R
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_Z—X"F+-_A=1+—ALFE 5%/(5%)  (182)/182 Mot (fiz)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
denominated in US$.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits and bank
balances included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets.

The Group has significant concentrations of credit risk as 61%
(2016: 73%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from one
(2016: one) customer. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the credit risk exposure in relation to this customer is
not significant as this customer had sound financial position for
whom there was no recent history of default. In addition, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.
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6.

920

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

()

()

Credit risk (continued)

The credit quality of the counterparties in respect of deposits and
other receivables is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Given the
constant repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that
the risk of default by these counterparties is low.

The credit risk on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and large state-controlled
banks in the PRC.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s finance lease payables bear interests at fixed
interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate
risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits. These bank deposits bear interests at floating rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of
reporting period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of each reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

6.

B EREE (F)

(b)

(c)

(d)

EERE (&)
BERZEeLEMRKTIENEF I EEERE
S RMBHRR - EEES REMERKETF
e ERTENERESL  EER/ZEFYHT
TR DR IRE o

RITEHEBNEERBRAR - TN EFH RH
B E BT EREBL TR EEFRNRTR
B ) KB B SR AR AR 1T

FRER
AEERERE RN FORZEEN X5 B RA
LSRRI A BN X @ -

REBEMXARIRERITER - ZERITEF
FIRAEE R TR AZEHEEE -

B LaiEoh  AEERBERNRLBEMER
MEtREEREE  ERARKERSRER
DR INTIZ M R MBS -

RBE SRR
AEBENBRRASEHEZNALERRSDES
FR o UEREESTRERSHEHEAMEERE
HEERMNRDESHK

TRITAKEN SR A ER SRS ROR%
TARBR - MARRR T A RBRIIRERR
AHRERE(BRERERA RN EHK(NEF
A=) RIFRE QBTN KRG EF LT
SRR AR ZRARE T &F B S
¢ o
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(C)

(€

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HXEKRERE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) (d RBESRARGE)
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based on AEERBESRABRRENEAENSHE
contractual undiscounted cash flow is as follows: BEREBERATOT
Less than Between Between
On demand 1year 1and2years 2and5years
RER —EHTF —-ZEWE MELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TiER
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tFE+=A=+-H
Trade payables JERTBRFR = 29,536 - -
Other payables, deposits received and HipEAFE  ERGETE R
accrued expenses [E:EH - 3,068 - -
Amounts due to directors ENESHIE 3,319 - - 7,000
At 31 December 2016 R-E-R"E+=-A=+-H
Trade payables FERTBRFR - 1,687 - -
Other payables, deposits received and HibEAZUE  EETE R
accrued expenses BB - 4,493 - -
Amounts due to directors ENEZERE 683 - - 7,000
Finance lease payables BEMERMUE - 43 - -
Bank overdrafts PTEX 50 - - -
Categories of financial instruments at 31 December e R+T-A=+—Hz£mITENEH
2017 2016
—=—+tF ZE—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Financial assets: eREE:
Loan and receivables (including cash and ER WA (BERE N
cash equivalents) HEEEY) 54,271 13,203
Financial liabilities: sEmas:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs B AR SRAaE 42,130 12,724

U]

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of

financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as

those described in note 4 to the financial statements.

Operating segment information

The Group is engaged in the single type business of research,
development, manufacturing and trading of electronic devices.
Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

Non-current assets of the Group are presented based on the

geographical location as follows:

7. oHER
ERHBHEEE RN B REN T4 RHBBER
iﬁo
K& ERE R

AEBEWEE —RIER - AETRENIIE - 20E
NES - At BEEKEDEER -

tEE H
REBRERBEERBEATHIZEMLESD

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong B8 - 1,250
PRC F 51 2,640
51 3,890

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is

FRBEAERENE BEMRBLEVAE -

BRAEEREIMEL WA FHRE A TR

presented based on the geographical location as follows: BE2%:
2017 2016
. —EAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 103,402 23,007
United Kingdom =®n 5,992 7,566
Germany = 2,512 7,026
The Netherlands =8 112 7,162
Others HAh 966 6,966
112,984 51,727
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7.

Information about major customers

The Group’s customer base included three (2016: five) customers with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of its revenue during the years

is set out as below:

7 EEFR (&)

FHRIREFNENR
REREEEEBBAEERE10%R5HAEE
SEBEF(CE—AF BR)WIMT

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZERF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Customer A (note i) BREAHEED 59,825 N/A 5 A
Customer B (note i) BEB(MF) 18,641 N/A i@
Customer C (note i) BREC(KEI) 18,415 N/A 5 A
Customer D (note i) BFED(MaFi) N/A T3 7,800
Customer E (note ii) BREK i) N/A T3 7,566
Customer F (note i) BREF(Hai) N/A T3 F 7,176
Customer G (note i) BEG(KEi) N/A 7iE A 7,162
Customer H (note i) BREHK i) N/A T3 7,026
96,881 36,730

[0] These customers did not contribute over 10% of the total turnover of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

(ii) These customers did not contribute over 10% of the total turnover of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

8. REVENUE

Revenue represents the invoiced values of goods sold, after allowances

for returns and discounts. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the

year is as follows:

(i) BE_T—R"FT-_A=+-HILFE ZZEFE
B2 A E R B 2 (R ST BB 10% ©

(i) BE_T—tFT+_A=+-HLFE ZEFFH
B2 WMAIE AR E 2 & BT EIR10% °

&=
Wt RE RITRRAEE RN BERER - A%
EEROKARSITAT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Sales of manufactured products SHE R E M@ 5,490 28,721
Sales on trading of electronic products, BfEM  REREME
accessories and raw materials B HHE 107,494 23,006
112,984 51,727
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. HiKA
2017 2016
—2—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Foreign exchange gain, net HNE Y2 5 58 2,078 -
Gain on sales of scrap SHEREMUA = 42
Government subsidies BT HEAG 144 -
Interest income AU A 2 13
Unwinding of discount on non-current liabilities FEmE B EA IR R - 1,189
Others HAth 532 1,457
2,756 2,701

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB EH
2017 2016
—Z2—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Imputed interest on loan from a director —REEFERZHEFE 396 -
Finance lease charges REHEER 1 10
397 10
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11.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

11.

PR AT 18
AR B BATE RV INR (G A) U T8 A &S

following: iR -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 18) & E# (K7L 18) = 135
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BERREITE
equipment (note 17) (Ba17) (a) 1,259 1,760
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRAN(BREEEHNE)
emoluments) (o)
— Salaries, bonus and allowances — 5% - TEALROER 7,551 17,280
— Share-based payments — AR AR R 15,565 -
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIKEFFT B K
contributions 366 1,222
23,482 18,502
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAK 107,419 46,125
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net HNE (Uezk )/ BIE 35 (2,078) 2,896
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEHE A Rl
(note 33(b)) (Ki7%33(b)) (701) (937)
Operating lease charges on premises YL EHEER (© 2,649 4,151
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 2 M 550 674
Impairment on intangible assets (note 18) &R &R E (i 18) = 579
Impairment on property, plant and Yz~ B E REERE
equipment (note 17) (Ktat17) 615 -
Allowance for inventories GFE#E 616 15,813
Allowance for trade receivables FEUL IR SR 3,321 -
Written off of property, plant and LE YN i
equipment 2,098 -
Notes: BisE
(@) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of approximately (@) BE-—T—+F+-A=+—HILEE Y% BE
HK$48,000 (2016: HK$414,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017 is T2 iR B 4T 495 48,0003 70 ( —F — X 4F : 414,000
included in cost of sales. BIT) AT ASEERAK o
(b) Staff costs of approximately HK$93,000 (2016: HK$1,511,000) for the ) HE-Z—+HF+-A=+—BIFE BIREL

year ended 31 December 2017 is included in cost of sales.

(c) Operating lease charges of approximately HK$29,000 (2016: HK$502,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 is included in cost of sales.
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12, FrE®iREY
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERREIE — EBFEH

Provision for the year FREE 58 -
Over-provision in prior years RBEFEBERE (20) -
38 -

Current tax — PRC EIT ENERRIE — B EPTISH
Provision for the year FREE = 1
- 1
Total tax charge for the year FATRIARZ BT 38 1

The tax rate applicable to the Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries were
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) during the year. For the year ended 31 December
2016, no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required as the Group’s
Hong Kong subsidiaries did not have assessable profit.

On 26 December 2014, Central Pacific Int Technology Limited (“CPIT”),
a Company’s PRC subsidiary, was granted status of High and New
Technology Enterprise and entitled to preferential EIT rate of 15% from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2017 provided CPIT continues
engaged in activities which meet the criteria of being a High and New
Technology Enterprise pursuant to No. 28 of the EIT Law of the PRC
(“EIT Law”) and No. 93 of the Regulation on the Implementation of the
EIT Law promulgated by the State Council of the PRC.

The tax rate applicable to the Group’s other PRC subsidiaries were
25% (2016: 25%) during the year.

No PRC EIT is required for the year ended 31 December 2017 as the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries did not generate any assessable profit.

RERN - AEEEBHEARBANREA16.5%(=
T—XF 1 165%) HE-T—ANF+-_A=+—
HIEFE BARAEEFTAENBARMEERT S
o BBEAEBFEBIETIREE -

RZZ-—OF+ZA=+XB  PEMNEFCRID
ERAR(THEMNETF] RARMDENEAR)E
R EEER AT NF-A—RAE-ZF
—tF+ A=+ - RERRIRNEETLEMS
HEG MBS - ATRATEMNE FREBILEN
EHERBERGEPBECERMSTE(RERS
Bk ) 28GR EMEBUEEMEIEDISE 9B KD
M RRERES

RER - RSB H bR B E A BE A R R A 25%
(ZZT—7RN%F 1 25%) °

HAREETRNBEARNEE_T—tF+-A
=+ RIEFERBELEAERTUERN - REBEM
MR B EATEH -
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of

12. FT8%iBI X (])

P15 0B 2 ER BRI AT S 1R 2E SR FRIA AN SR B BB AU B

loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of the $E‘\J¥¢E~EHDT :
Group is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —F—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss before tax BRI AT E 1B (33,649) (44,093)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% BAHFEA6.5% (—T— 7 4F ¢
(2016: 16.5%) 16.5%) it EHOFIIE (5,552) (7,275)
Tax effect of preferential tax rate BEREsHBTE 428 2,148
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BERBIMANRBZE (243) (351)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible TERAS ORISR /:iz 4,073 5,938
Tax effect of temporary differences AERERFEENT B E
not recognised 9) (94)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRIEBENT B2 1,867 1,497
Over-provision in prior years RIBAF SRR E (20)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ME AR TRMER (506) (1,862)
Income tax expense for the year FAMRBHAX 38 1
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMS
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ ESMe
The emoluments paid or payable in respect a person’s services ENSENREERARSENBARERZ
as a director, whether of the Company, or its subsidiaries EERERBZALZBE0T -

undertaking were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—t&+-_A=+—HILEE
Retirement
benefits  Share-based
Salaries and scheme payment
Fees  allowances contributions expenses Total
RAER DR 5
A FERZH SRR ERGREX st
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TER
Executive directors BTES
Tang Wai Ting, Samson HEE - 226 13 - 239
Kor Sing Mung Michael (i) Kor Sing Mung Michael (i) = 538 = = 538
Mak Hing Keung (i) 2R (i) - 195 10 - 205
Liu Liang 2% - 120 - 4,953 5,073
Zheng Si Rong (ii) =R (i) - 110 - - 110
Wang Li (i) 7 (i) - 110 - - 110
Non-executive directors FHITES
Li Ying (i) =8 () 25 - = = 25
Tse Yee Hin, Tony (i) FFE (i 163 - - - 163
Wu Jin Sheng (iii) R (i) 82 - - 4,953 5,035
Chong Yu Keung (i TR 54 (i) 82 - - 4,953 5,035
AuHol Fung (v) EHE W) 55 - - - 55
Liang Yuiie (vi) PFA (Vi) 63 - - - 63
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Chan Sze Man (i) B ET8L(0) 65 - - - 65
Lee Wai Hung (i) R (i) 65 - - - 65
Ng Ka Chung (i R i) 65 - - - 65
Eugenia Yang (i) 57L& (i) 65 - - - 65
Huang Jian (i) H I (i) 82 - - - 82
Chan Hin Hang (i) BROT77 (i) 82 - - - 82
Zheng Wan Zhang (i) EDETAR (i) 82 - - - 82
Wong Tik Tung (i SEARER (i) 82 - - - 82
1,058 1,299 23 14,859 17,239

98 Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued)
The emoluments paid or payable in respect a person’s services

(@)

as a director, whether of the Company, or its subsidiaries

undertaking were as follows: (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

13. EERESHS(E)

(@ EZ#H<E @)
ENSENSEHERARRLEMBRREEL
BERREERBZALZBMEOT - (8)

BHE_Z-—RE+A=1+—RIFE

Retirement
benefits  Share-based
Salaries and scheme payment
Fees allowances  contributions expenses Total
RIRAEH AR R
BR  FAREH SRR AWML @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL FET TET TET
Executive directors HYITES
Tang Wai Ting, Samson WEE - 240 12 - 252
Kor Sing Mung Michael Kor Sing Mung Michael - 212 - - 212
Leung Wai Hing (vii) DEE i) - 356 13 - 369
Mak Hing Keung HER - 360 18 - 378
Liu Liang (vii) 3155 (v - 4 - - 4
Non-executive directors FHITES
Kor Sing Mung Michael Kor Sing Mung Michael 162 - - - 162
Li Ying ZE 300 - - - 300
Tse Yee Hin, Tony HFEH 300 = - - 300
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Chan Sze Man B8 120 - - - 120
Lee Wai Hung EEY 120 - - - 120
Ng Ka Chung (RERE 120 - - - 120
Eugenia Yang BT 120 - - - 120
1,242 1,172 43 - 2,457
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. ESKEEMSE (F)
(continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@ ESME(HE)
Notes: Bzt -

(i) Appointed on 1 March 2016 as a non-executive director,
redesigned to an executive director of the Company on 15
September 2016 and resigned on 29 September 2017.

(ii) Resigned on 17 July 2017
(iii) Appointed on 17 July 2017

(iv) Resigned on 1 February 2017

(v) Appointed on 1 February 2017 and resigned on 17 July 2017

(Vi) Appointed on 23 June 2017 and resigned on 19 December 2017

(vii) Resigned on 15 September 2016. Salaries and allowances of
approximately HK$117,000 paid to Ms. Leung Wai Hing after her
resignation as a director had not been included in the 2016
emolument analysis.

(vii)  Appointed on 21 December 2016

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b)
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included four (2016: nil) director(s) whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2016: five) individual(s) are set out below

0} REZB-RE=ZA - BEZERARRIEHR
TEE NZT-R"ELATHERENEZ
FRATEERR -_ZE—tFNA-TAIA
BHE

(ii) R-Z—tF+A++EHEHE
(i) RZT—tFtA+ERABET
(iv) R-ZT—+4&—-F—HET

v) R-T—+E_A—RAREZIERR-ZT—+
FEA+EHEHE

(vi) RZTE—tFRAZT=HEZERR=Z
—tF+ZA+TNRBEHE

M)  RZFB-RNFAATHRARE  —ZF—RF
FMO LN EBRREBLLEHEIESR
EES R E S RREAKD 17,0008 7T ©

Wiy RZE—ARFTZA-+—HEZE

RER BEREEHNEXRABTHREERAHEH
2o

EURSHMAL

RER - AEBRLUKSHFMHALTEEDNS
(ZF—RF :TR)EF AMSE LM 27
DT RER - K —R(ZF—RF : AR)
EARBE D BIEN T

respectively:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Basic salaries and allowances BN ) S 936 2,696
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREFFTEIME R 18 83
954 2,779

There was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any of the
directors and the five highest paid individuals during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

HE_ T+ TR "F+-_A=+—8
IHFE  TEATAESRAXESHMALT
A ST BYISTEAT ©
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(b)

()

()

Five highest paid individuals (continued)
The emoluments fell within the following band:

13.

EEkESHE (R)

(b) EURSHFMAL(E)
BATIEENHS

Number of individuals

AH
2017 2016
—®—+% —E—R%E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 7T 1 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

Senior management’s emoluments

Senior management represents the executive directors. The
emoluments paid or payable to senior management during the
year have been set out in the analysis presented above.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year of at any time during
the year.

14. DIVIDEND
No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company during the year
(2016: Nil).

15.

LOSS PER SHARE

(@

Basic loss per share

14.

15.

RER AEEBERENESIESHMA
TXAERB S E RN Sk i B AR SR B 1R O 22
S E R BRI E -

(c) BREBEAENHS
SEEEASBENTES NFR - DHRE
NTeEfREREZMECHR L 25 Mo
oo

d EZERRZ ZHIEHPEENEKR
i
ARFEEREBESHEN AR FARAEE
ST AR ERE R B R
BARS  RERAKD  HEEAMEELE
AR -

B2
ARARFARERN RS REMRE(ZT—KF :
).

BRER
(@ BREFXER

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Loss 3]
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic ARstEEREAN#E
and diluted loss per share EEMEE (33,665) (44,094)
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15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
(@) Basic loss per share (continued)

15.

BREE (K
@ ‘BREFERE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—REF
Number of shares BRBEE
Issued ordinary shares at the REVEEHITHEBR
beginning of year 5,227,800,000 5,227,800,000
Effect of issue of shares by placement under 1815 — A& 12135 B Al & 317
general mandate Binr 8 79,890,411 -
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEREREIERN
shares for the purpose of calculating -5 A% N S
basic loss per share 5,307,690,411 5,227,800,000

(b) Diluted loss per share

The effects of the Company’s potential ordinary shares in respect
of the outstanding share options are anti-dilutive for the years

ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

16. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 (2016:
HK$1,500) per employee and vest fully with employees when

contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The only
obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension

scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined contribution

plan available at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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16.

(b) BREHER
RARREE_Z—+ER_T—RF+A
=+—BIEFEZRITEEREER 2 EEY
BRzEERREETE -

RKERGE

AEERBERERNEARESIIEPIRBEERES
EREREERIIEARSHE([RERFED - A
SEERESHEZHREBHFERTENS%E
HEHEEEARSEER1,5008TT(ZF—RF :
1,600/ 7T ) K FE A SR TR & 51 &I RS 2 2l B B 2

g o

ARG B A B AR S B T A RO 1R B 2003 77 T IR
BENTRREAREEE - ZEMBEBA AR H REAK
S EREEEAFEARTENETAALMER KU
RBRRBANREES - 7 T BN AR A EZ SN B
RAFBERA RARFRKEBORIENEE - %F
B AR BLR RIBERE 5 Bl ME— R ERBENFTEIE
THERIHR

REFB—EFR-FT-RNFT_A=+—RAEER
HFET B2 2R KRR A -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% BERERHE

Furniture Leasehold Motor Office Plant and
and fixture improvement vehicle Mould  equipment machinery Total
BRREE HENEEE RE KA WORE HEREESE @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TEx TEx TEx TEx TER TER
Cost B
At 1 January 2016 RZE—"E—A—H 44 392 1,151 1,280 552 23,254 26,673
Additions NG 14 879 - 27 1,090 - 2,010
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBAR ©) - - - (1,017) - (1,029)
Exchange realignment i 5 28 - - (16) - (16) (964) (996)
At 31 December 2016 and NZB—RE
1 January 2017 +ZA=+-Bk
“E—+F-A-H 52 1,271 1,135 1,307 609 22,290 26,664
Additions wE - - - - 64 - 64
Written off e (18) (1,271) - 7) (169) (10,130) (11,615)
Exchange realignment ERAR - - 14 - 16 426 456
At 31 December 2017 R-2-+%
+=A=t-H 34 - 1,149 1,280 520 12,586 15,569
Accumulated depreciation RiHTERFEERE
and impairment loss
At 1 January 2016 RZE—"E—H—H 35 16 910 1,280 369 19,271 21,881
Charge for the year FEREY 4 247 177 2 157 1,173 1,760
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBRR - - - - (113) - (113)
Exchange realignment i 5 2% - - (13) - (12) (729) (754)
At 31 December 2016and ~ RZZ—RF
1 January 2017 +ZA=+-BkK
“E—+F-A-H 39 263 1,074 1,282 401 19,715 22,774
Charge for the year FRRX 2 238 62 4 77 876 1,259
Impairment losses REFE - - 1 - 4 573 615
Written off s 0 (501) - ) (64) (8,939) ©,517)
Exchange realignment ERAZ - - 12 - 14 361 387
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tF
+ZB=t-H 34 - 1,149 1,280 469 12,586 15,518
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tE
+=BA=1+-A - - - - 51 - 51
At 31 December 2016 RZE-F
+-F=+-H 13 1,008 61 25 208 2,575 3,890

As the end of reporting period, the carrying amount of a motor vehicle
held by the Group under finance lease was nil (2016: approximately
HK$40,000).
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18.

104

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. EIEE
HK$’000
FERT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2016 RZE—X"F—HA—H 239
Additions NE 533
Disposals of subsidiaries LS BA R (49)

At 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 and
31 December 2017

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2016

Charge for the year

Impairment loss

Disposals of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 and
31 December 2017

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

R=ZF-A"E+=A=+—-H"
—2—+tH-A-BR
—E—+tF+=A=+—8H 723

ZNEBHERAEESSE

RZE—RF—H—H 20
FAMZ 135
IEEE 579
HEM B A A (11

R=-B—XR"E+=-A=+—-8"
—E2—+tH—-A—-BKZ=
F—t&E+=-A=+—8 723

BREE
RZE—tF+=-A=+—H

WZZE-—RF+-A=+—H

BIVEEREABYE=THBEENN M EMAEX - BH

Intangible assets represent software applications acquired from
independent third parties. Such intangible assets have definite useful
lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group carried out
review of the recoverable amount of its intangible assets, having regard
to the market conditions of the Group’s products. The review led to the
recognition of an impairment loss of approximately HK$579,000 for
software applications have been recognised in profit or loss. The
recoverable amount of intangible assets has been determined on the
basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method. The
discount rate used was 6.4%.

BIEECRFRARMREREEN S FAHE -

BE_Z-RF+A=+-RBILFE ZEIKE
BlEMRNTR - AEEYETEEN AT E S RET
A o Zim e G B E T e A2 SURERR 2 49 579,000
BILZREBRER B AER - BPEEZATKE
SRR EERBECABRRARSRIDEAEZE
HERTE o PTEMAAIRER6.4% °
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19. INVENTORIES 19. &
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials R = 1,419
Work-in progress EES - 336
Finished goods and merchandise BUAK G N 7 A 260 1,289
260 3,044
At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories were stated at RIBERR - AEB 2 FETIE]ZBFEYE -
net realisable value.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no reversal of allowance for HE_Z—+F+A=1+T—HILFE  HERERF
inventories arose from sales of obsolete inventories (2016: Nil). EMEEETERERR (ZT—RNFE)-
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. FEURBRFX
2017 2016
—=—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Trade receivables U RR X 34,553 4,620
Allowance for doubtful debts RAREE (3,321) -
31,232 4,620

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an allowance was made for
estimated irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately
HK$3,321,000 (2016: Nil).

The Group’s trading terms with its major customers is either on credit
or to provide the Group with irrecoverable letters of credit issued by
reputable banks, with terms within 90 days (2016: 30 days). The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.
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BE-T—tF+-A=+—BLEE  HEHTT
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. FEUWNERFX (4E)
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the REEREZEARGTENEERRNRRSTAT

invoice date is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHT
0-30 days 0% 30H 5,473 591
31-60 days 31 £ 60H 14,391 263
61-90 days 61 %290 H 4,172 123
Over 90 days 90 B 7,196 3,643
31,232 4,620
As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of approximately BE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—8 EREZYH
HK$7,196,000 (2016: HK$4,121,000) were past due but not impaired. 7,196,000 7T (= ZF — 734 1 4,121,000/ 70) B i85
These trade receivables related to customers for whom there was no BRBME - 525 BRI SA B AR 8B P
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables, B - ZSEWERFIZR B BTRE ST ¢
based on due date, is as follows:
2017 2016
—=—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
0-30 days 0% 30H - 92
31-60 days 31 £60H - 263
Over 60 days 60 HEA E 7,196 3,766
7,196 4,121
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of AEBERFEPROEURFVEREA T ES
reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: & :
2017 2016
—E—tF TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHIT
HK$ BT 7,437 835
us$ ET 22,854 3,698
RMB AR 941 87
31,232 4,620
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21. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 21, HMEWRIE  BAIRERES

DEPOSITS

2017 2016

—E—+&F —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FHT

Deposits b 1,190 1,371

Other receivables HAth pE U R IE 551 -

Prepayments TR FIE 889 595

2,630 1,966

Neither of the above assets is past due nor impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES/BANK OVERDRAFTS
(@) Bank and cash balances
At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash balances of
the Group are denominated in the following currencies:

22,

bitE ERTE B B TR E - LA LSRR E AR E
BUE EE YR B BN B R A0 A0 B JR MR OR -

RITRBASHER BITEX

(a)

RITRASEH
WEER - ARERTRRSAHETIIE
AT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BT 10,310 4,736
RMB AR 10,961 1,694
us$ EM 27 782
21,298 7,212

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.
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22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES/BANK OVERDRAFTS
(continued)

22, RITRBELEHR RITEX ()

(b) Bank overdrafts (b) WITEX
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Bank overdrafts RITHEX - 50

For the year ended 31 December 2016, bank overdrafts of the
Group were arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The average interest rate
of the Group’s bank overdrafts during that year was 13.85% per
annum.

23. TRADE PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the invoice
date is as follows:

HE_Z—R"FT+A=+—RHLEE K&
EIRTTEIRFEHE - A< ARAIEERE
SREMERER - AEERZFRRITESH
FIGFRE %13.85% o

23. ENER®
AEEERRE AP ENENRERNER ST

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET

0-30 days 0&E30H 4,913 1,118
31-60 days 31£60H 14,565 7
61-90 days 61290 H - 8
Over 90 days 0B E 10,058 554
29,536 1,687

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

REBERRE RO ENRRAOREENA TS5

reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: A
2017 2016
N —ENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 408 21
RMB AR 1,108 451
us$ ETT 28,020 1,215
29,536 1,687
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24. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

24, HENFHE BRITEREFER

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FET

Deposits received from customers BRI & 3,482 1,638
Accruals for operations K EETIEE 1,898 3,007
Accruals for staff costs FEEE TR AR 1,141 1,467
Others HAh 29 19
6,550 6,131

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

Except for amount due to Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson (“Mr. Tang”),
amounted to HK$7,000,000 (2016: HK$7,000,000) is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on 31 December 2019, is classified as non-
current liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and is carried at amortised
cost calculated at an effective interest rate of 6.4% per annum, as of 31
December 2017, amounts due to other directors of approximately
HK$3,319,000 (2016: HK$683,000) are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
amounts due to directors constitutes continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules but fully exempted
pursuant to Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing Rules as the Company has
fulfilled the relevant requirements.
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B e B0 A 25 A ([ BB 58 4 1) 5778 7,000,000 7 7. (=
T —7XF : 7,000,000 7)) AEEIF  LERRT
—NF+ZA=+—HEE BEAR-_ZT—tF
TZRA=T—HHFERDEERRERFNX6.4%
HEMEHEK ARG BE_T—+tF+=A
=+—HB EFEMERKIFELS319,0008T(=
TN : 683,000 7T) REEF  RERARE

il yom
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26.

110

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 26. MEHEESTIE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BIERAENRE BEAERERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF —E—-+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHIT
Within one year —FR - 42 - 41
In the second to fifth years, F_EFRF(REEEMT)
inclusive = - = -
- 42 - 41
Less: Future finance charges S R EE A - (1) NAFTEHR N/A i A

Present value of lease obligations T4 & /& #EHE - 41 - 41
Less: Amount due for settlement & : 12{E A N E|Hi& %8
within 12 months (shown MEEE (RBamE
under current liabilities) HTETR)
= (41

Amount due for settlement after 12@ A RIS HENMELEE
12 months

The Group had leased a motor vehicle under finance lease. The average
lease term is 5 years. During the year, the average effective borrowing
rate was 7.42% (2016: 7.42%). Interest rate is fixed at the contract date
and thus exposes the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The lease is
on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered
into for contingent rental payments. The finance lease payables are
denominated in HK$.

The finance lease payables of the Group are secured by the lessor’s
title to the leased assets.

During the year, the outstanding amount of the Group’s finance lease
payables was fully settled.

AEEREREEERER —WTE - FHEMRS
FoRFR FHERBEERRT.42%(ZF—RF:
7.42%) - MERZAR A HEE AT S AREE R
ARENXER - HEREEEEEERBERIA
ME R R 2 - BERERNFIRNETAH
B~

AEEREHERNFAERHEAANEEEENERE

o

RER - AEERERERNTENRNESREER

iy
©E -
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. EERIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of RBEHR - REBEARBAAIA 21,063,0008 (=
approximately HK$21,063,000 (2016: HK$11,971,000) that are T—7RF 1 11,971,000 70) MBI IEE B R IEEER
available for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets RIEFRF T - REZSHBEVERRELERIBEE -
have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to Th R AR R E T IR TR TR o aT AKRIERAIRL
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax TH E518 /38,762,000 7 7T ( ZF — 754 : 4,140,000 %
losses are losses HK$8,762,000 (2016: HK$4,140,000) that will expire TEE BRZE-N\FE_ZTE__FhFMHEE
in 5 years from 2018 to 2022. Other tax losses may be carried forward w e BT IR A 1 T AL IR BRAAEE o
indefinitely.
Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, a withholding tax is imposed on REBEPECEMBRE  RPBRBRARNRZZZN
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries F—A— B ARSI E IR S HUL B -
from 1 January 2008 onwards. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, no RIFB—+FRZZFE-R"E+A=+—0 " WEH®
deferred taxation in respect of these taxable temporary differences had ERBERMEZEERELTIE  BAKEENF
been recognised as the Group’s PRC subsidiaries were loss making B A RN FEANEREBERE -

during the years.

Up to 31 December 2015, deferred taxation has not been provided in RZZE—AF+-A=+—8 " BEEEPEWNBER
the financial statements in respect of temporary difference attributable AIE-EE ) N\FE— A —HERNA RN EEEEE
to profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiary since 1 January 2008 BT ERR AN |EHRIRIE R IR - TR A E g
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the ) R 22 FE B ) e R T R E R AT R N A R R
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary difference REEE o

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. WA
Number of
shares Amount
BRHEE x|
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0002 each % HEE 0.0002 8 TR E B
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, R=ZB—XRE—HF—RH -
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 —E-R"Et+=HA=+—-8"
—E2—+tH—-F-HK
—E2—+&E+=-A=+—H 50,000,000,000 10,000
Issued 28T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0002 each SRR EE 0.0002 BT R E B A%
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, RZZE—R"F—H—A8 "
1 January 2017 TR+ -_A=+—8H"
—E—t+F—A—H 5,227,800,000 1,046
Issue of shares on placement under general R —fRIZEMBEERITRG (F:7(0)
mandate (note (a)) 270,000,000 54
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tH&E+=-A=+—H 5,497,800,000 1,100
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28.

112

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

(a) On 17 August 2017, the Company and the placing agent entered into a
placing agreement in respect of the placement of 270,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.0002 each at a price of HK$0.09 per share under general
mandate. The placement was completed on 14 September 2017 and the
premium on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately
HK$23,880,000, net of share issue expenses, was credited to the
Company’s share premium account.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The capital structure of the Group comprises all
components of shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report from the share
registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing the non-public
float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit from
the date of the Listing. As of 31 December 2017, approximately 35%
(2016: 57%) of the shares were in public hands.

28.

B~ (%)

@ ARFEEERER-_ZF—tF/\A+ERFIT
EEHE - RiE—REEAER0.09ET 2B
fic & 270,000,000 fix & % 1 {E 0.0002 7 JT & % 38
B RER_ZE—LFAATHATK  BITR
17 ) i (B %9 23,880,000 7T (B Bk 47 # 77 B9
SORFARR BB A7 i B B o

AEBEREANARARERAEBFELLR
BN REBBILESRRAEHRT AR ERFERK
REH - AEBEEAREBERRERNAEA
PRITE ©

REBBEBEEEAKARESHERIBHN A
DIREBEEEARE AREKEEBINK
8 BITHAR R R BEIARBITHEY  EE
RAEBHREEEENRPBEHET A FEHELE
BEARE -HE_T—+tFR-_FT—"F+=
A=t—HLEHFE BXEENER  BEIR

AN B M 35 A B X BT _E T AL 2 ME— SNER B N
ZERENE  AEEBERBEEL25%BRMH AR
FHERE AEESEEERGBEELESH
FIRIEABIEREZEARMOERRE - RS
FERAEEB F A AR S BT 25% 2 R
B-RZZE—tF+ZA=1+—8 FEEHEH
35% (ZF—R"F : 57%) RN ABREFE -
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Other payables and accrued expenses
Amount due to a director

HAGREAS FOR R R B B
BN —BEEHIA

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 29. XA TZEBHMRRE
COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHIT
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MEE = 35
Investment in a subsidiary REB AR ZIRE = 2,508
- 2,543
Current assets REVEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT FRIE K H b FE UL FR IR 856 138
Amounts due from subsidiaries JIE L B BB 1% B BB 20,141 -
Bank and cash balances RITRBSEH 1,113 6,216
22,110 6,354
Current liabilities nREBEE

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT B8 R B KTE
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (AR FE
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) EE /(868 FE
Capital and reserves BAR#E

Share capital %N

Reserves ]

TOTAL EQUITY/(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY) EREE(EREH)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

March 2018. %o
Liu Liang Zheng Si Rong
e BER
Director Director

e BE
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1,794 123
3,280 -
8,045 11,083
13,119 11,156
8,991 (4,802)
8,991 (2,259)
1,100 1,046
7,891 (3,305)
8,991 (2,259)
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30. RESERVES 30. R
(@ Group (a)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein are

REE
REENREREPNEDEGEEIBSELEM
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and FEERRMGEERETRANZ

other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

(b) Company (b) AT
Share Option  Contributed
premium reserve surplus  Accumulated
(note 30(c)(i))  (note 30(c)(v)) (note 30(c) (vi)) losses Total
ROEE BRERE EON:)- BB @t
(WiE30e))  (HaE30c)y)  (Ha30c))
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TR TR TR FHER TR
At 1 January 2016 W=Z—~F—A—H 38,747 317 29,764 (21,717) 47111
Release upon lapse of share option B AR R A R PR - 317) - 317 -
Loss and total comprehensive FRBERZARE
loss for the year B - - - (50,416) (50,416)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF
1 January 2017 TZA=+—BRK
S = 38,747 - 29,764 (71,816) (3,305)
Issue of shares by placement under RIE—RBEER
general mandate (note 28(a)) BERTRE
(KiE28(a)) 23,880 = = = 23,880
Recogpnition of share-based BRARG BEELTR
payments - 15,565 - - 15,565
Loss and total comprehensive EREFEER2EEE
loss for the year am - - - (28,249) (28,249)
At 31 December 2017 R-B-t5
+=A=t+-AH 62,627 15,565 29,764 (100,065) 7,891
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) RENHEERTE
0] Share premium (i) 17518
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the BERSHSRRNE  ARRIRMNEE
funds in the share premium account of the Company are RzESAHESIRTARARE - ER
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided BEEZEDILREBH®E  KRRIARRE
that immediately following the date on which the dividend NEEHNBBSEBEREPEINHZE
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a 7% e
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
Share premium represents premium arising from the issue A1 i (B 512 H SRR AR 1) E B2 B 1%
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share BT - WHNRE AL EETT R AR 1 3
and after deduction of capitalisation issue and issuance IR BEE 2 HE ©
costs of shares.
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30. RESERVES (continued)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

v)

vi

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to allocate 10% of
its profit after tax as determined in accordance with the
relevant accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to PRC companies to the statutory reserve until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
appropriation to the reserve must be made before any
distribution of dividends to equity holders. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to offset previous years’
losses, if any, and part of the statutory surplus reserve can
be capitalised as paid-in capital provided that the amount
of such reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall not
be less than 25% of the paid-in capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of
Central Pacific International Group Limited (“Central
Pacific International”) amounted to HK$10,300,000 and
HK$2,100,000 respectively at the date on which it was
acquired by Millennium Pacific International Group limited
(“Millennium Pacific”), over the nominal value of 1,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(b)(iii) to the financial statements.

Option reserve

Option reserve represents the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(r) to the financial
statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represented the
excess of the consideration of Central Pacific International
at the date on which it was acquired by Millennium Pacific,
over the nominal value of 1,000 shares issued by the
Company pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.
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(c)

RENEERRE (&)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

()

SR

IR AR B A B3 K AN 5k 8 R B F B A &)
WARMEBEIRME - REEREME
NEVERBEMREGTBOR RHRE R R)E
A B 75 15 15 BT 7 E M BT 10% B 12
N EATEEE - EEREEED R
BIRH)50% o AR BB BTERE
WRR DR B 2 BIER o V5 E BERrRE
HAREEEBEFENER(NE) -
B EEBBRREBAIHBTERNREY
B EBRTERERSRNZERES
BISEREEEETSHEAREY
AR A #) 25% o

B
aftEEEPERREEFRAF ([H
] R K E ]) EMilennium Pacific
International Group Limited([ Millennium
Pacific]) ¢ i & B H It &K | (&
10,300,000 7% 7T K f% 17 )4 {8 2,100,000
B RIEARRRRBEAEER i
Tz EA(EBER]) 171,000 8%
Betn B EE 2 R Z 5

SMNEIRE

INE BB FE O ERREIGINER I
wEMAEERFTAINEEZR - REIRR
B 75 3R 2R B R 4(D) (i) BT B & 5T BR
I e

B

BEREEERTARRREZRITE
Bz ARSMGHBE 2oE ®
1R R B 75 SRR O S 4(n) Bh AR 2R A DA
B fn AR MR 2 B BERRER

AR ER
RARMBABBRIEPERREEE
Millennium Pacific 4 % & H 89X B2 1A
AN BB 4R 55 B S 4 %17 1,000 B AR 15
WEEMIS -
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31.

116

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 20 June 2014, written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company was passed to conditionally approve and adopt two share
option schemes namely, Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (“Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) and Share Option Scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) to recognise and motivate the contributions that eligible
participants have made or may make to the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme was valid and effective for a period commencing from
20 June 2014 to the date immediately prior to the Listing of the
Company (i.e. 17 July 2014), after which no further option to be
granted, but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 20 June 2014
will remain in force for a period of ten years from its effective date to 19
June 2024.

Particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme of the Company are set out in Appendix IV to the Company’s
prospectus dated 27 June 2014.

Pursuant to the resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed
on 20 June 2014, it was resolved to grant 2,000,000 share options to
an employee under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, to subscribe for
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$1.35 per option. The
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
exercisable for a period from the date immediately prior to the Listing of
the Company to 19 June 2016. During the year ended 31 December
2016, 97,200,000 share options, being the adjusted outstanding share
options of the 2,000,000 shares options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme following two share subdivisions of the Company
on 8 January 2015 and 9 October 2015 respectively, were lapsed
following its expiry on 19 June 2016. As of 31 December 2016, there
was no outstanding share option under both Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and Share Option Scheme.

Pursuant to the resolution of the board of directors passed on 19
December 2017, it was resolved to grant an aggregate of 500,000,000
share options to three directors and seven employees under the Share
Option Scheme, to subscribe for shares of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.1632 per option (“2017 Share Options”). Details of 2017
Share Options are set out below:

31.

BAURAD RER AT

CARE s A E BB IR AR T
RZZE—MFRAZTE  AARRFBBERE
& BIRIHHLE IR MRIREAERT 8] - A LM AT
Berestal ([ Em AT IR AR 81 ) s st 81 (1 58
RAERTE]) - ARAT REEA B2 EE LA
BUAKEFELZER - LTAIEEREEE-F
—OERA-ZTEREEEAQFT LW —H(B1=
T-NEELATER) LHRBER LAY - HREHE
SRR 1 T AT AR BN A+
RN BRI - ABUE SRS B M AT BRI TEIRIE £
1 A AR S T 81 6 SR BV (AT B IR B ST T2 T =
BHREERR

ARBERZZ—FRNA T HARGEIRESS
BRFEIAR AR 10FANFR > KN _F /N
FRNATABER -

AATZ LA B R B Bl 2 HBHR
AARBEHA-T—NFRAZ+LHAZBREREN
#00

REARDRRER T —MFEXNAZ+BRBRE
RBABEBEEMAIEREFERN —RZEERT
2,000,000 17 B AR 8 - LATRTT B G 7 EARIE 1,357
TLRBBARABIRD o IRIR - AT AR AT 815 L A0

BEMEEARR LTI —AREE T —RFRA
TARLEEMEA FIE B=2_FT—R"F+_A

=+—HIFE 97,200,000 17 8 B4 (BIR & =
AT % AR AT 2195 1 89 2,000,000 A BE R EAE =T — A
F—ANBRZZT—AF+ANALERIRD DT
BITABRNRITEBRE) R _F—~FXATNA
[ERBRHR - RZE—A"F+_A=+—0  #HEL
BT B AR 5T B K A AR A =T B eV (E AT R A TR R IR A o

REEFENR _ZF—tF+ A TNLRBBARE
R CBRRBEBREFIN=LREFREREERY
& #£500,000,000 17 B X - AIRTTEE & 1) BB AR
0.1632 B TREARARMN (=B —LFBBRE]) -
—T - EREREFEEINT
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31.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

31.

BARAD R E R AR ()

LA s 45 SRS R R B (D)

No. of Exercise price
Grantee Date of grant share options Vesting period Exercise period per share option
ARA BTEY BREHE BED T BHERETEE
HK$
BT
Director 19 December 2017 (A) 162,000,000 N/A 19 December 2017 to 0.1632
18 December 2027
5% —E—F TER —Z—+F5+-A+NAZE
+-A+thBE® “E-4+F+-A+/\H
Employees 19 December 2017 (B) 169,000,000 19 December 2017 to 20 December 2018 to 0.1632
19 December 2018 19 December 2027
E& B “Z—tH+-A+NRE ZE-\E+ZAZt+HZE
+ZA+AEB) “Z-)\F+tZA+tNAB ZE-tE+ZAt+AhH
Employees 19 December 2017 (C) 169,000,000 19 December 2017 to 20 December 2019 to 0.1632
19 December 2019 19 December 2027
E& B “T—+F+ZA+NBE ZZT-NEF+ZA=1+HZE
+-ATHhH(© “E-NE+=ZA+AIH “E-4+F+-A+THH

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

500,000,000

RITEIBBAER R MEBBMETITRE 2 ZE N

related weighted average exercise price as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
options price options price
InfEF9 IR
BRERE TEE fBREEE 118
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning RERITIE
of the year - - 97,200,000 0.027
Granted during the year FRET 500,000,000 0.1632 - -
Lapsed during the year FRLLHR - - (97,200,000) 0.027
Outstanding at the end of the year RERKITHE 500,000,000 0.1632 - -
Exercisable at the end of the year REKRAITE 162,000,000 0.1632 - -
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31.

118

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, options to subscribe for a total of
500,000,000 option shares were still outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme which represents approximately 9.09% of the issued
ordinary shares of the Company.

The weighted average share price at the date of share options granted
was HK$0.162. The above options comprising at the end of the year
have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 10 years and the
exercise price is HK$0.1632. The estimated fair values of 2017 Share
Options are determined using the Binomial Model. The estimated fair
values and significant inputs into the models were as follows:

31.

R RERSRK (&)
DEREEBRESTE (F)
R-ZE—+tF+-A=+—8  RIEERETETR
i & $£500,000,000 A% fi A% 4 AR 15 69 B AR A T AR HE 1T
- MERAARBBITERRMLI9.09% °

P B R A B B INE T RE R 01628 T ©
REFER EERENMET IR GBRENRAI10F
NITEER016328 T - — T —HEEMREZ H5T
ARBERAZBERNBAETE M ANERZER 2
SEHARENOT ¢

2017 Share Options

—E-tFERE

19 December 19 December 19 December

2017 2017 2017

—E—+tF —Z=—+tF —Z=—+tF

+=At+hH +=At+hAH +=A+hA
(A) (B) (C)

Option price model HREEEERX Binomial Binomial Binomial
—IER —IE=K —EK

Estimated fair value at the RErEBNEETAE HK$14,898,000 HK$14,027,000 HK$14,872,000
measurement date BT BT BT
No. of options granted KL ERELE 162,000,000 169,000,000 169,000,000
Estimated fair value of each option ~ E{pEERIEMNET AL E HK$0.092/87C  HK$0.0837% 7T  HK$0.0887% T
Weighted average share price REFE B MEFIRE HK$0.162 7% 7T HK$0.162 7% 7T HK$0.162 78 7T

at the measurement date
Weighted average exercise price
Exercise multiple
Expected volatility
Expected life
Risk free rate
Expected dividend yield

IOREFI97T R (E
ITHEEH
TR AR R
TaETFH
R A R
TREAR B s &

HK$0.1632 % 7T

HK$0.1632 7 7T

HK$0.1632 # 7T

2.80 2.20 2.20
60.19% 60.19% 60.19%
10 years 10 years 10 years &
1.77% 1.77% 1.77%

Nil Z Nil = Nil =

The expected volatility was determined by using the average of the
annualised standard deviation of daily return of share price of three
comparable companies’ historical volatility quoted by Bloomberg.

Asset Appraisal Limited is an independent firm of professional valuer
appointed by the Company to carry out the fair value of 2017 Share
Options.

The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of
approximately HK$15,565,000 to profit or loss during the reporting
period for the above options granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme.

& B 18 T3 {8 A Bloomberg FTUCR = 8 E A RIEE
SRR B B RS R P FREZET -

PHEAENERRERARAARRREUTH =
Tt FBERN DA BENEIEEMHERRF -

AEE AR RREEAAERT B H A0 LR g
BERENEEWRIARN BERN KA XL
15,565,000 8 7T ©
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32.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are

set out below:

Place of incorporation/

32. MEARA
EHIIT :

Registered and

Percentage of

ARRZMBLARAR-T—tF+-A=+—Az#

Principal activities and

Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
£ AL R HEMRARRE REREZEIN TEERREEHY
Direct Indirect
Hi &
Millennium Pacific British Virgin Islands 1,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding,
11 September 2013 US$1 each Hong Kong
Millennium Pacific REERHS 1000 B A E 1 =8 REER  BE
“F-=FNA+-A LAk
Central Pacific International Hong Kong HK$12,400,000 100%  Trading of electronic
14 January 2000 devices, Hong Kong
FERNEE B 12,400,000 77t BETRBEES B
~22345-A+0A
Millennium Pacific Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Trading of electronic
10 October 2014 devices, Hong Kong
Millennium Pacific Trading Limited N 10,0008 7T BFHRHES BB
“T-WFHATE
Millennium Pacific Solutions Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Inactive, Hong Kong
10 October 2014
Millennium Pacific Solutions Limited &% 10,0007 EEER BE
“F-WmFHATE
Millennium Pacific International Trading  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Provision of data
Company Limited 21 April 2015 management services,
Hong Kong
ERATFRRESHBERAA B 10,0007%7T REHBERRE &8
“T-RFMA=1+—H
R ALH ORI R RHE 2R PRC Registered and 100%  Investment holding,
BRAR(FEIIZER ) 21 May 2015 paid up capital of trading of electronic
RMB10,000,000 devices, PRC
BT ORI BRI IR h AE#10,000,0007T,2 REER  EFRE
BRAR(DRYIER]) “T-RFAAZT+-H T R A 85 HE
ARG (R AEEREER PRC Registered and 100%  Inactive, PRC
BRAA 10 July 2017 paid up capital of
RMB300,000
BRAF ORI ABBREER HE AE#300,0007T2 EEEY - hE
BRAA —T—+tFtA+A BRIPE v
BRNF (RI) AEEREBRAA  PRC Registered and 100% Inactive, PRC
13 July 2017 paid up capital of
RMB300,000
RS (R RBBERRERAR  FE AR#300,0007T2 EmET - TE
—Z—+tF+AT=H A ks RRA
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

32. BT (&)

Place of incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of Principal activities and
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
% MR, B R RAE REREZEAN TEEBRECEHE
Direct Indirect
EH# Bz
BN ORI BERERAT  PRC Registered and - 100%  Investment holding, PRC
(M) 4 August 2017 paid up capital of
RMB300,000
BEAT ORI BERRERAT  HE AR#300,0007T2 REZR - HE
(TR —Z—+F/\AMmA ERlISE Ve
BRAF (I EBRERAR PRC Registered and - 100%  Inactive, PRC
28 September 2017 paid up capital of
RMB300,000
BEAT ORI EDRIRERAT  HE AR#300,0007T2 EES PE
“E—+FENAAZTNB ERlISE Ve
ARG (R AEEBESRAAF  PRC Registered and - 100%  Inactive, PRC
28 September 2017 paid up capital of
RMB300,000
BRAT ORI ASEREERAR  HE AE®300,0007T.2 EES PE
“E—+FENAAZTNB ERlISE Ve
ER (BN BEREBRAT PRC Registered: - 80%  Development and sales of
(THXGZ1) 11 August 2017 RMB1,000,000 software applications,
Paid-up: RMB250,000 PRC
ZE(BM)BERRERA HE FEf - YRR RS R
(FEEEM]) —Z—+F)\A+—H ARH1,000,000 7T #HE P
#7  AR¥250,0007T
CPIT PRC Registered and - 100%  Research, development
3 July 2007 paid up capital of and manufacturing of
HK$10,000,000 electronic devices, PRC
TEMNEF (RINBRAF HE 10,000,000 0.2 7t & BFREMMEREE -
[FENET]) —EZ+F+ A=A HRERA FE
Central Pacific Electronics PRC Registered and paid up - 100%  Inactive, PRC
(Shenzhen) Limited ([ CPE]) 12 May 2004 capital of HK$5,000,000
FEREET ORI BRAR HE 5,000,000 0.2 EEES PE
(THERRET]) —ZTMNFRATZA ERlISE Ve
English names are for identification purpose only YL TEEEER

Note: #INER%, CPE and CPIT are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established

in the PRC.

BSNEBE R o

CORYER - PERBEFRPEMEFRET BN
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. mEBERERMEE
CASH FLOWS
(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary (@ WEHMEAR
On 12 September 2017, #94% £t , an indirectly wholly-owned “E—+FNATB  ARFHEZENE
subsidiary of the Company and HXGZ entered into a NEEEREEEEMNET LRE R ® - B8
subscription agreement, pursuant to which #3%4% %l agreed to MEREREBEEEMNNTTZMERTR
inject RMB200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$224,000) by W) - it x & AR %200,0007T (%) F 5%
way of subscribing the new registered capital of HXGZ 224,000 7T) - RETHKE - BEBIEEE
(“Subscription”). Upon the completion of the Subscription, FEEREMB0% M EHEATMER - RIER
4R owned as to 80% of the enlarged registered capital of T—tFNA+TZBZER  BEIRHAEEN
HXGZ. The Subscription was completed on 12 September 2017. HEBEFREE -
The Subscription is for the purpose of supporting the Group’s
consumer electronic devices business.
Immediately prior to the completion of Subscription, HXGZ was SERBTKA  EERMITERERET - A
inactive with fair value of the identifiable assets of approximately A#AEENAAE(BNEKARRIE) 895
RMB50,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$56,000), being AEHE50,000 7T (K957 56,000 % 7T) ©
amount due from a shareholder.
The fair value of the identifiable assets of HXGZ acquired as at RREAHMBEEERMNOAHNEENR
the date of Subscription is as follows: AEHTRAT
HK$’000
FERT
Amount due from a shareholder JFE U i% 3R SR8 56
Cash and bank balances We MIRTTHER 224
Non-controlling interests E Sl (56)
224
Net cash flow arising on Subscription: REEENRESR=F58
Subscription satisfied by cash IR & Z R REIE (224)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired iR e R EEY 224
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Disposals of subsidiaries

U

122

During the year ended 31 December 2017

On 27 December 2017, the Group disposed of its entire
interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary, namely, Millennium
Pacific Concept Limited (“MPCL”), which was engaged in
research, development and trading of electronic devices,
to Archon Wellness Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and is wholly owned by Ms. Leung Wai Hing,
a former employee of the Group (the “Purchaser 1”) at a
consideration of HK$150,000 (the “2017 Disposal”).

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement entered
into between the Group and Purchaser 1 dated 27
December 2017, the Group has conditionally agreed to
sell the entire interests in MPCL under which (i) the amount
due by MPCL to the Company at the date of completion
of 2017 Disposal amounted to approximately
HK$551,000, would be procured by the Purchaser 1 at
cost; and (ii) the amount due by Millennium Pacific to
MPCL amounted to approximately HK$10,000 would be
waived. The 2017 Disposal was completed on 27
December 2017.

Net liabilities of MPCL at the date of the 2017 Disposal

33. HRERERERME(H)

(b) HEHBELQR

U] HE—_T—+F+_A=+—HIFE
ZE—+tF+ZA=+tH AEE
(B 150,000 T E 7 2 E A A
(" Bl Millennium Pacific Concept Limited
(IMPCL))  #EEFRENHELE
5 ) B2 E#E25 & F Archon Wellness
Limited (72 & 7 s it A 32 30 £ 2 & [ 51
TRERERAZT([EF1))2EHE)
([ZZB—tFHESHE]) -

BEAEEEE S 1R _T—LE+=
AZ+tRAFTIzEEWHE  A5EE
BEHEREHENMPCLE 2 IS « 1
It () MPCLIRZZE—+FHEREE
A% B HAJE 5 F AN R B M) R IE £9 551,000
B BHEEFTERRARS  K)
Millennium Pacific & {5t ¥ MPCL#) 3% 78
#4710,0008 T EH R - — T —+F
PEFER=_T—+tF+=-A=++tH
TR °

MPCLR=ZZ—+HFHEFHAHNE

were as follows: BEFEAT
HK$’000
FET
Amount due to Purchaser 1 JERTE 1708 (551)
Amount due to the Company XD ZAVNGIE- 2 (1)
Amount due from Millennium Pacific &% Millennium Pacific 7 18 10
(542)
HK$’000
FiExT
Net liabilities of MPCL disposed of HEXRMPCL & EF5 (542)
Wavier of amount due to the Company G ENARRIFIE 1
Wavier of amount due from Millennium Pacific FA%0 & U Millennium Pacific 08 (10)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE T E A R 701
Consideration receivable recorded in T AH At fEUERIE - TR IR
other receivables, prepayments, and deposits EEHEURE 150
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Disposals of subsidiaries (continued)

33. HRERERERME(H)

(b) HEMEAT @

(i For the year ended 31 December 2016 (i) HE—F— N F+_A=1+—HIFE
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group HE_Z—A"F+-_A=+—8L*#F
disposed of its entire interests in three wholly-owned E AKERER=X2EMBELA
subsidiaries, namely, Millennium Pacific Information (IR EEHABIZFAEER
Technology Limited (“MPIT”), Truvisio Limited (“Truvisio”) Millennium Pacific Information
and Millennium Pacific Information Technology (Shenzhen) Technology Limited ([MPIT]) - [& 4% £l
Limited (“MPITSZ”) (collectively known as “Sale #ABR A F ([Truvisio |) X E B AFF
Companies”), which are engaged in operation of internet EERB ORI AR 2 A (MPITSZ
trading platform, to an independent third party (the (6B HEAFD) N E2HERHET
“Purchaser 2”) at an aggregated consideration of BUFE=H(EHF2) REEHA
HK$3,200,000 (the “2016 Disposal”). 3,200,000 T([ Z B —XRNEHES

B e
Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement entered BEANEEEE oM AHAZE
into between the Group and the Purchaser 2 dated 30 —"EFtTtZA=THZEER# &%
December 2016, the Group has conditionally agreed to BEEEBRHERELHENHERARNEE
sell the entire interests in the Sale Companies whereby all o Bl HERRARZT—RFH
the amounts due by the Sale Companies to the Group at EFETKABEN TAREENZ IR
the date of completion of 2016 Disposal, at an aggregated 18 - 4858 /A#912,959,000 78 7T © iEIEAR
amount of approximately HK$12,959,000 would be FEHE c —T—RNFHEREN-Z
waived by the Group. The 2016 Disposal was completed —RNFE+ZA=THTK
on 30 December 2016.
Net liabilities of the Sale Companies at the date of 2016 HERRR T —NFHEFHBHN
Disposal were as follows: BEFHEOT
MPIT MPITSZ Truvisio Total
MPIT MPITSZ Truvisio #BEt
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FHET FERT
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % -~ 5= K& & 899 - 11 910
Intangible assets EILEE 38 - - 38
Other receivables H b fE U OB 1,278 - - 1,278
Bank and cash balances RITRIR R 99 3 - 102
Amounts due to the Group FER AN EE FRIE (11,847) (1) (1,111) (12,959)
Other payables H A R RUE (49) ©)] (13) (65)
Net liabilities disposed of HEBEFE (9,582) (1) (1,113) (10,696)
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33.
CASH FLOWS (continued)
Disposals of subsidiaries (continued)

124

(b)

()

(i)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued)

FERERBRME (B)

(b)

S A F ()
(i) BE-F-AFF—A=A—ALFEE)

HK$’000
FERT

Net liabilities of the Sale Companies disposed HEHEANRNAEEE (L)
of (per above) (10,696)
Waiver of amounts due to the Group R EMAEBRIE 12,959
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries S B A Rk 937
Total consideration, satisfied by cash BREB UREFRIH 3,200

Net cash inflow arising on 2016 Disposals: A-ZE—RELEFHEELRN
WEMAFHE
Cash consideration received B SNRE 3,200
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERe MRS EEY (102)
3,098
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) BMETBzEEHIEK

activities
The table set forth below is the detail changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,

classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

TRHAJASEREEHELZ AENEDHF
B BEASMIRCED REFDEEL
BEDEARSRENARRASTENNER
FERERERTORARATYRSNEN
AfE-

1 January Interest ~ 31 December
2017 Cash flows charges 2017
—E-tF
—T—tF +=A
—A—H RenE FIEBRA Er=[E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHEL FAEL FEL FiEx
Amounts due to directors NERTEBEED
classified as current liabilities FETEEIE (f17225)
(note 25) 683 2,636 - 3,319
Amounts due to directors DEAERBAREN
classified as non-current FEEEIE (f17225)
liabilities (note 25) 5,811 - 396 6,207
Finance lease payables (note 26) R &R EFEN FIB (K13 26) M (42) 1 -
6,535 2,594 397 9,526
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

34.

35.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As of 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have any capital
commitments.

LITIGATIONS
The following significant litigation and petition were brought against the
Group during the year:

U]

Winding-up petition

On 14 July 2016, the Company announced that Charles Zhi
(“Petitioner”) had filed a petition dated 11 July 2016 (“Petition”)
in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong
(“High Court”) against (i) the Company; (i) Mr. Kor Sing Mung,
Michael, a former director of the Company (“Mr. Kor”); (i) Mr.
Tang; (iv) Chan Kai Hei, spouse of Mr. Tang and a shareholder
with 1% shareholding interest of CPIT Investments Limited
(“CPIT Investments”), a then substantial shareholder of the
Company according to the Disclosure of Interest information
shown on the website of the Stock Exchange (“Mrs. Tang”); (v)
Yang Wu, a then substantial shareholder of the Company
according to the Disclosure of Interest information shown on the
website of the Stock Exchange (“Mr. Yang”) ; (vi) Mak Jone, a
shareholder of the Company; (vi) Seize Minute Limited (“Seize
Minute”), a then substantial shareholder of the Company and is
beneficially owned as to 100% by Mr. Kor; (viii) CPIT Investments;
(ix) Leung Wai Hing Ella, a former director of the Company; and
(x) Mak Hing Keung Thomas, a former director of the Company,
alleging that (i) Central Pacific International was injected into the
Company prior to the listing of the Company based on overstated
valuations; (i) the operations of Central Pacific International were
mostly dubious; and (iii) certain shareholders of the Company
were engaged in illegal share pledge borrowing and acted in
breach of the Code on Takeovers and Mergers, which in the
circumstances renders it just, equitable and desirable to wind up
the Company.

Pursuant to the Petition, the Petitioner had sought for (i) an order
that the Company be wound up by the High Court under the
provisions of the Companies (Winding-Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (the “Winding Up Order Sought”); and (i)
such other orders and costs may be made in the premises as
shall be just.

On 29 September 2016, the High Court ordered that the Petition
being sought by Petitioner to wind up the Company be struck
out and the whole proceedings be transferred from the
Companies Winding Up List to the Miscellaneous Proceedings
List under action number HCMP No. 2651/2016.

On 22 May 2017, the Petitioner has filed a notice of
discontinuance to the High Court to discontinue his claim against
all the respondents (including the Company) in the Petition.
Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 31 May 2017.
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34, BEREIE

35.

RE—+tFR T R"F+=-A=+—H
A AT A & AR

FRER

REAHAEERBNERFARE

@

P REHE

o

ERCNNE

—RNFELtA+TEB XRQFAMH
Charles Zhi([2BA DR ZZ—RFLA+—
AEEASSERERNFE ((SEER]) ()
AR A (i)A A A Al E % Kor Sing Mung,
Michael 5t 4 ([Kor 5t % |) + (iii) B0 5t 4+ (iv) B
% 4 Bt 1B 3k # B CPIT Investments Limited
([CPIT Investments |) 1% A% #& 2 B& R 1B &
Bt X T B B BT R AR AR ER .2
T ERRBRER ([BA]) ¢ () IRIRE S FrAd s
BEEEERMTARARER 2 ZERREG
R(BEED (V)RR FRRERR ; (vi) A&
NAEB I ERFEAKor k4t 2 EBEHE
A Z A 7)Seize Minute Limited ([ Seize
Minute |) : (vii)CPIT Investments : (ix) & 2 7]
MESREE RNARBIAESTEERIR
HE2F(TE2F])  BEORERREETIRE
BEARGEERANRE EWADEARRQE (i) P E
RIREB AR EBEEB & Ki)AQ
AETRR2EEERHEFREERERAR
WEERAHTE - BB ARBEEBAF - &
FEREEME -

BREZEF  2FABROBEFERBER
B OB 8 R AT IGSO) 1&0 2 X AR R#E
ITEBROES (DERSHRK])  Ri)BEAEA
B2 RAFABNAERRE FEL -

RZZ-=RFNAZTNR  FERBESH
HHEFASRBRARARNER - WHERE
FERFIARAREREEEEMRARFDA
BRAmRERMRE T —/NFE20517R)

“E—+FHA-+-H  EFAESEER
BHRIEBRN RIEMZFFOAEERFA
(BFEARAR)REMER - FHFBEHREAR
AI-ZE—+tHERAZT—HORE -

125
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE

35. LITIGATIONS (continued)

(ii)

Litigation

On 13 February 2017, the Petitioner, Kim Sungho, Lim Hang
Young, Kim Kyungsoo and Joung Jong Hyun (collectively
referred to as the Plaintiffs) had file a claim against (i) the
Company; (i) Mr. Kor; (i) Mr. Tang; (iv) Mrs. Tang; (v) Mr. Yang;
and (vi) CPIT Investments under action number HCMP 326/2017
(“Legal Proceeding”) in the High Court.

The Plaintiffs had requested the High Court to grant an order to
the above mentioned defendants to submit the following
documentations for the examination of the Stock Exchange,
Securities and Futures Commission and the Financial Reporting
Council: (a) all ledger accounts of CPIT Investments; (b) all related
documents of the sale and purchase of 200,000,000 shares of
the Company between Mr. Yang and CPIT Investments; (c)
identity documents of Mr. Yang; (d) all related documents of the
pledge of the Company’s shares by CPIT Investments to obtain
financing since November 2015; and (e) the nominee agreement
between Mr. Kor and Mr. Tang, if any.

On 16 May 2017, the Petitioner has filed a notice of
discontinuance to the High Court to discontinue the claim against
all the defendants (including the Company) in the Legal
Proceeding. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 May 2017.

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
did not have any contingent liabilities at the end of reporting period

(2016: Ni).

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than those balances of related party disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group had the following material transactions

with its related parties during the year.

Key Management Compensation

Other than those disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements, there
is no remuneration paid to key management personnel of the Company

during the year (2016: Nil).
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35.

36.

37.

ek ()
(i) FFEA

RZE—tF-_A+=H' 2F A Km
Sungho - Lim Hang Young * Kim Kyungsoo ;&
Joung Jong Hyun (678 [ R4 ) AZ&EAR
M)A AF  ([iKorde A& (i) BS54 + (v EBA :
V)G E 5 R MVI)CPIT Investments iz H B &= -
FAREASRER_T—LFER6R([E

ey NIDID
J?iE?E;%‘m}/ﬂ*ﬁﬁ ib‘ﬂ&iﬁﬂﬁéi
BHELMPESHERZESRUBERS

)CW}”JX@M /\@E : (a) CPIT Investments
FMEKNSBEERAB: O L £ RCPT
Investments 2 8 Hf & & B B & A A
200,000,000 A& B% 17 &) BT B B RASC 1+ ()15 %
EREHERAXHE BT —AF+—A
#2 + CPIT Investments JAZR 22 &) A& {7 15 # 37 A
ISR ERFT BB K (e)Kor 5t & KR &S
FEZEFTI B A (E) -

“E-tFAATRA EFAMBEERE
HE BN RIEMERFRPIMERE
(BEARRDREMNEER « DFEHNAR
A—E—tFAA-t+-_HNRSE -

RAREE
Rz EH MR EMEERTEIN - REBRRERR
WEA AR ABE(ZT—RF &) -

BBLX5
B TSR At B E R R A BT AN AEER
FREREB B TIEARS °

FTEEEERNS
B BMERMFISAEEEIN - FABMERARA
FEEBEABSNME(ZT—XRF &) -
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38.

39.

LEASE COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

38. HE&RIE
R-B—+F+-A=+—0  RETAFHELHE
BREMREREREREBENT -

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Within one year —FR 4,327 4,057
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF(BEEERE) 5,795 366
10,122 4,423

During the year, operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its offices and factory premises. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, leases are negotiated for an average term of
2 years (2016: 3 years) and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and
do not include contingent rentals.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 27 March 2018.
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RER  REMEFREARERE TREERTR
BEEMOHES BE-_T—+F+-_A=1+—HIt
FE - HEWSHEERSFHEM2F(ZF—RF
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39. HUETIRAEEE
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFEUBERE

Year ended/As at 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEE R+=A=+—H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF —TRE T-RF —T-NOF —T-—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT FHET FHET FAET
OPERATING RESULT P
Turnover HER 112,984 51,727 67,098 237,226 348,321
Cost of sales SEER A (107,419) (46,125) 61,054)  (210,511)  (308,843)
Gross profit EF 5,565 5,602 6,044 26,715 39,478
Other income EmUg A 2,756 2,701 1,084 342 272
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEKEA Rk S 701 937 - - -
Selling and distribution costs THE R A (640) (1,957) (3,321) (2,967) (4,615)
Administrative expenses THAX (41,634) (51,366) (20,890) (23,422) (19,765)
(Loss)/profit from operation 2B (F1])wA (33,252) (44,083) (17,083) 668 15,370
Finance costs B2 (397) (10) (424) (1,065) (1,754)
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (B518), A (33,649) (44,093) (17,507) (397) 13,616
Income tax expense FeHAE (38) ©) (19) (1,216) (3,336)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER), w7 (33,687) (44,094) (17,526) (1,613) 10,280
Other comprehensive (loss)/income EREHMBEE(EE)
for the year, net of tax: WA - MBRBIE :
ltems that may be reclassified to profit AREEFHHEEERN
or loss: HE -
Exchange differences on translating WEGINETSRER
foreign operations [ 5 =58 (2,198) 2,012 548 8 (311)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2HE(EBR),WMALE (35,885) (42,082) (16,978) (1,605) 9,969
(Loss)/profit for the year FEEER (BE) 8T
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company A YNGIE Z=PN (33,665) (44,094) (17,526) (1,613) 10,280
— Non-controliing interests — FFERE S (22) - - - -
(33,687) (44,094) (17,526) (1,613) 10,280
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EBiEERAEZE
for the year attributable to: (F518) WMABE
— Owners of the Company — ARREHEEBA (35,866) (42,082) (16,978) (1,605) 9,969
— Non-controlling interests — IR (19) - - - -
(35,885) (42,082) (16,978) (1,605) 9,969
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BERE 55,471 20,743 72,265 102,364 85,495
Total liabilities BERE (45,670) (14,612) (24,052) (37,173 (58,809)
Net assets BEEFE 9,801 6,131 48,213 65,191 26,686
Equity attributable to: FEiGRER
— Owners of the Company A YNGIE Z=PN 9,764 6,131 48,213 65,191 26,686
— Non-controlling interests — FEIERRE 37 - - - -
9,801 6,131 48,213 65,191 26,686
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